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(Proceedings commenced at approximately 9:00 a.m.)
THE CLERK: All rise.
mTrhlHhj couRT: you may be seated. At this time

the Court once again cal-ls the case of State of
Wisconsin versus Steven Avery, case 05_CF_381.
would the parties state therr appearances for the
record?

MR. KRATZ

THE COURT

MR. KRATZ

Is the sound system not on?

Nope. ft's not on at all?
No.

THE COURT: Okay. It's on now. Torr.i €.; ^rV!!IIIU.

Mr. Kratz, appearances for the State?
MR. KRATZ: your Honor, the State appears by

Calumet County District Attorney Ken Kratz,
appearlng aS special prosecutor. AIso appearing in
this case is Mr' Falron, Assistant Attorney General_,
and Mr. Gahn, Assistant District Attorney from
Milwaukee County.

MR. BUT.ING: Good mornrngr four Honor.
Attorney Jerome Buting, and Attorney Dean Strang,
appearrng with Mr. Avery, who i_s present.

THE COURT: Atl right. Mr. Kratz, are you
golng to calf your next witness?

MR. KRATZ: I don,t know

Judge.
if this is working,
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THE COURT:

the plug under the

(At which

working after the
was plugged into a

District Attorney,

MR. KRATZ:

fittle foud. But

Judge.

THE CLERK:

Does that help at all?
desk.

Check

trme the sound system started
e-Lectric cord for the microphone
different outfet under the

s table. )

That is probably going to be a

the State calls Nicole Sturm,

If you would raise your rrght
hand?

NrcoLE STURM, being first duly sworn on oath
to tell the truth, Lhe whole truth, and nothing but
the truth, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: please state your full name and
spell your last name please.

THE WITNESS: Nicole Sturm, S_T_U_R_M.

DTRECT IXAMINATION BY MR. KRATZ:

O Good morning, Ms. Sturm. Thank you for coming
this morning. Let me first ask you if you know a woman
by the name of pam Sturm?

A yes.

0 Who is pam?

A She is my mother.

O And were you with pam on the morning hours of
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A

O

November fifth of 20OS?

Yes, f was.

Would you tell the jury where you went that
morning please?

We first went to Teresa,s hcuse, to enter the
search, to become volunteers for the search.
A11 rlght. Thereafter, Ms. Sturm, dld you
accompany your mother to a property which is
known as the Avery Auto Salvage yard?

YAa I dr  r vtu.

And after arrlving at that scener w€ understand
from your mother that you receivedr lou and she,
that is, receirred permission to search for the
vehicle on that- propertyi is that correct?
Yes. We received permission from Earl- Avery.
Tefl the jury, as best you can remember, what
efforts you made to search for Teresa,s car that
morning?

we started out heading toward the south of the auto
salvage yard. We went through, looking inside
vehicfes, looking for anything that we could
distinguish, anything to do with Teresa, whether it
be Teresa herself , or any articles that. would be ,,as
j-n lrortl

Sometime just before 1O:30 that morning, I

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O
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understand you found something,. is that rrght?
Yes' my mom indicated that she found a RAV-4 Toyota
vehicle that didn't exactly match the descrrption on
the search form that we had, but looked very
simil-ar, and was distinguishing because it was
covered up with auto salvage materials, as well as
branches. So, she definitely called me over, and I
went running.

A]1 right. When you ran toward your
locat_ion, can you telf the lury what
please ?

f saw a bfueish green RAV_4 with salvage parts up
agarnst it, and branches over the top and on other
areas' definitely a vehicre that 100ked like someone
was trying to hide.
Now, t.here is an exhibit which has been marked in
this case and received as Exhibit Number 31. T

direct your attention to the large screen here
to your right, and ask if that, in fact, is the
vehicfe that- you saw that mornrng?

Yes, thal_ 1s the vehicle.
Now, your mother explained __

MR. BUTING: Ob;ection, counset is leading
the witness by saying "your mother did thisr lour
mother did that". She should be asked open_ended

mother' s

you saw

O

A

O
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questr-ons/ and let the witness exprain what she saw
and what she did.

THE COURT: I will sustain the objection to
1_he form of the question.

MR. KRATZ: That's fine, Judge.
BY MR. KRATZ:

O Ms. Sturm, who took the photographs of these
vehicl-es ?

A I took the photographs.

O And, other than taking the photographs/ can you
tell the jury what else yor_r did around that
vehicle ?

A with a tissue, r checked arr four doors to see if
any of the doors were open. They were afr locked.
So, none of the four doors were open. I also used
my cell phone to call the Sheriff,s Office.

O Can you descri_i:,e this "tissue,, a little bit
better ?

A sure ' Because -Lt was a cold November day, r brought
tons of ti-ssues with me, because my nose was

running, and "what not". I had clean tlssues within
my pockets. My mom stated, "please use I donrt
want to disturb anything, So please use your shirt
sleeve, or whatever you have to avoid touching the
vehicle- I t.hought I better, that I had clean
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A

tj-ssues in my pocketr so f used that. I did check
a}l four doors to see if anything was open. They
were aIl locked.

Ms ' sturm, you did have occasion to look inside of
this,. correct .

Yes, I did look in at every angle, and saw a WiId
cherry pepsi in the front, and a bottle of Aquafina,
but I didn't see Teresa, or anything Lhat f could
identify that it was definitely Teresa,s vehicre at
that. point.

could you describe the lighting conditions inside
of the vehicle please ?

Well-, the area that the vehicle is in, you can see
there are trees, and "what noL,,. It was a rather
cloudy day. Tt was definitely dark. you couldn,t
visably see- we did not have frashlights to be able
to intricatery Iook at details within the vehicle.
Did you check for a vehicle identificatron
number?

Yes, r dld rook. r didn't know exactly where they
were located- so, it did take a llttle whlfe to
locate the vrN number. But we be did find the VrN
number on the driver's side, near the windshield.
It was a bfack interior, and a black dashboard, but
al-so the metal that the VrN number was on was black

O

A

O

A
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O

'-^! ^ l ,.^ I l/ o_ wer -L . _Lt was a I ittle dif f iculr to
actually read the VrN numberr dS werl as the fact
that f am a little bit shortr so f had to try to
reach over the top of the vehicle to read the VIN
number' without touching the vehicre r or actually
touching or rubbing up against the vehicle.
After the telephone call was made to raw
enforcement auLhorities, where did you go?
r stayed right near my mom/ right near the vehicle,
and' after raw enforcement was contacted, we moved a
l-lttle bit away from this vehicle, but we kept our
eyes on the vehicle at all t1mes, ;ust to make sure
that no one else was coming. We didn,t want to draw
attention to ourselves, in case someone would come
after us, because we did find the vehicle.

Was there any fixed ob;ect or any place 1_hat you
were standing, while you waited for law

enforcement to arrive?
We were near a car crusher, 1_he machinery that
crushes cars in the salvage yard.
Whife you were waiting for law enforcement,
did any individuals approach that vehicle?

No. No one was near the vehicle.
How long was it before law enforcement arrived, if
you can remember?

A

O

A

O
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A

r woufd say approximately 20 minutes, dt the most.
After law enforcement,s arrrval, can you tell us
what you did please?

When law enforcement arrivedr we pointed to where
the vehicle was, and we stayed on the scene to be
abfe to give statements.

When law enforcement arrived, where were you
looking, and what were you doing?

We stayed right near the car crusher area, and we
were waiting for the actual identification that it
was Teresa's vehicle, and for them to come back and
identify it as Teresa's vehicle, because at that
pornt in time we still were unaware , rf it was her
vehicfe or not.
When faw enforcement arrived, were you also
watching the vehicle?
Yes' we kept our eyes on the vehicle at afl times.
Did anybody enter the vehicle?

No one entered the vehicle.
Did anybody touch the vehicle, that you saw?

No one touched the vehicle.
Ms. Sturm, did you know the difference berween the
Manitowoc County Sheriff,s Deputies and the
Calumet County Sheriff,s Deputies?
Yes' they did identify themserves, with their names

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

10
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and which department they were from.
o Do you know which department was the first to

arrive on the scene?

A The first to arrive on the scene was Manitowoc
/a^,.*!--uounty' However, they had an officer that stood
near t-he vehicfe and did not touch the vehicle. He
did not really approach the vehicle. He just ,,stood
guard", to make sure it was not touched until
Calumet County did arrrve.

O About how long after Manitowoc,s arrrval dld
Cafumet arrive?

A Just a few minutes. They were right behind.
O After the Calumet County officers arrived, did you

contl-nue to watch the vehicle?
A Yes, we did.

O Once again, Ms. Sturm, did anybody either
approach, touch the vehicle, or enter the vehicle,
while you were there?

A No' No one touched the vehicfer or entered the
vehicle whife we were there.

O How long were you there before you actually
left that scene?

A we were there until rike noon or ,,r2:30-ish,,before

we left the scene. So, two hours, or two and a half
hours.

L1
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O fn that two hours that you were there , or two
and a half hours that you were there, that entire
time, did you see anybody enter or touch that
vehi cle ?

A No. No one entered or touched the vehicfe.
o Ms ' sturm, you mentioned that you had checked the

four doors. What four doors are you talking
about ?

A The driver's side, front and passenger doors, and
the actual passenger/ front and back.

O All four were locked?

A All four were locked.

o were you asked to give either a verbar or a

written statement to law enforcement that day?
A Yes, r gave a written statement to raw enforcement.
o Did you terr faw enforcement that you checked the

doors and they were locked?

A Yes, and r indi<;ated that r did use a tissue, that I
didn't use my bare hands to check ihe doors.

MR. KRATZ: I believe that,s all I have.
Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Buting?

MR. BUTING: Thank you, your Honor.

CROSS EXAMTNATION BY MR. BU,IING:

O Good morning, rna'am?

L2
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A Good morning.

a Now, you talked about when you first arrrved, that
you began looking through some vehicles before
your mom discovered this SUV; is that right?

A That's correct.

O And, in fact, before you did that/ were you there
when she asked permission, or did you ask
permission yourserf of anybody who appeared to be
on the property?

A I wasn't_ there when my mom asked EarI Avery for
permission to search the property.

O And he gave permission; right? Freely?
A Yes, he gave permission.

O Is there some reason you look at them every time
you answer, other than looking at me?

A No.

o Have you been told to do that by somebody from the
District Attorney's office?

A No.

O Did you prepare for your testimony i_oday?

A No, I did not.

O Okay. So, he gave you permission; rrght?
A Yes. He gave us permission.

O Did you get his name?

A Yes.

L3
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O What was it?
A li:r I

o okay' He didn't hesitate t.o give you permission
to check anywhere you wanted; right?

A No, he did not hesitate.
O Okay. It didn,t appear as if he had anything to

hide from you?

A No.

O Okay.

A Not. to my knowledge.

O you said as you were going through the beginning
vehiclesr 1zou were tooking for either Teresa r oT

any articles that would appear to be

hers; rlght?
A Correct.

O So, you were lcoking carefully inside each
vehic]e, not just rooking at the outsrde of the
vehicl_es; right ?

A we were trylng to glance into the vehicres, and rook
anywhere Lhat w.rs open. Some of the trunks were
open.

O Did you open any doors?

A No.

O You never openetl up any doors of the other
vehicles ?

I4
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A No.

o okay' But you were 100king inside those vehicres.
even though they are were not, obvrously, not
Teresa's vehicle; right?

A No, they didn't fit the description of Teresa,s
vehicfe.

O I understand. Even though they didn,t fit the
description, you were looking inside those
vehicles, ds well, to see if you could see
anything; right?

A Correct.

O Anything like "Teresa herself ,,,. right? Her body?
A Correct.

O Or anything that would look like hers?
A Correct.

O Okay. Then, when you got Lo the RAV_4, your mom

was nol_ sure if it was the same one or not?
A Correct.

o And so you were rooking inside that vehicle to
see/ again, Lf there was anything that would
indicate to you any articles of Teresa,s?

A Correct.

o okay. Sor lou vrere looking carefully inside
there, because you were trying at that point
to make some det-ermination of whether that was,

15
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really was Teresa,s vehicle; right?
A f was looking for things like the license plate, or

anything that we coufd look at, that we had
information about, to be able to identify if the
vehicle was hers, or not.

o or anything, d'y writing that might have her name
on it; right?

o Any personal effects that you courd use to hetp
you identlfy that vehicle was actuarly Teresa,s,-
right ?

A Correct.

O So, it was important to look inside the vehicle,
not j ust at the outside; ri crhr r

A Correct.

O You saw no blocd whatsoever, did you?
A It was a dark, or "very dark,, interior.
O Ma'am, did you see any blood?

MR. KRATZ: Judge, I will ob;ect as

"argumentative". She IS tryrnq to answer the
question. If it's not "yes,, or ,,no,,, she should be
able to explain.

THE COURT: That is a ,,yes,, or ,,no,,

questron. rf the explanation is not sufficient on
cross, you can ask it on redirect.

L6
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A

O

So,ttyes

No.

You didn

right ?

. KRATZ: I will do that, Judge.

MR. BUTING:

ll^^tr^vr 1ru . uro you See any blOod?

't have a flashlight with vou, you said;

No. I said I did not have a flashfightr !es.
Neverthel_essr we are talking about a Saturday
mornrng; rlght? It was dayliqht?

(-nrranl-
vv!!!vu.

fn fact , it was 10:30 in the morning, something
like that?

Correct.

It was not raining?

No, it was not raining.
It was not terribly dark? It was a typical cloudy
November duy, at 10:30 in the morning,. rrght?
It was a cloudy day at 10:30 in the morning.
okay. And the trees that you mentioned were
around it, none of the trees had leaves on them,
did they?

No, but it was a very brushy area with trees, versus
the other ffat area that \,^/e were looking dt, where
there was nothing blocking the other vehicles.
All right. Nowr lou knew that, in fact/ your

MR

BY

tt

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O
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mother warned you that it was important that you
not touch the vehicle, the RAV_4 that you found;
right ?

A Correct.

o You were doing your best not to alter the scene,.
- -,rra-f 2

A Correct.

O And not only did you noL want to touch the
vehicler lou didn't want to touch any of the
branches r or debris, or anything efse up against
it either, did you?

A Not with my bare handsr flo.

O Okay. The only thing you ever touched, even with
a tissue/ were the door handles; is that right?

A To reach one of the door handles, T did have to purl
back, r berieve it was a salvage part, to be able to
reach the door handte. r did that with the tissue,

.,^ I l

O All right. So, did you move something that was

agarnst the vehicle itself?
A I just took the tissue and pulled it back, so I

woufd be able to reach the door handle.

O That would be the hood, that was propped up

against it?

A I would have to see the picture to identify it.

1B
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MR. BUTING: Would you put up Exhibit 30,
Counsel ?

(At which time Exhibit 30 was shown on the
biq screen in the courtroom. )

BY MR. BUTING:

O I think that is it, right there up on the screen?
A YAC

o okay' rt was some sarvage part, that in order for
to you get at the door handle on that right rear
door, you had to move that panel?

A I did not necessarily physically move rt. I just
pulled it back and checked the door.

O And reached over?

A Right.

MR. BUTING: Okay. Let's go to Exhibit 29

please.

(At which time, Exhibit 29 was shown in the
courtroom on the big screen. )

BY MR. BUTING:

O Do you see Exhibit 29 up there?
A YOE

O That is a photo of the rear of the RAV_4?

A Yes.

o And there is a door handre on that door too;
correct ?

T9
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A Correct.

O you didn't check that one, to see if it was
locked, did you?

n rrA No, I did not.

MR. BUTING: And if you could go to Exhibit
33 please? Thank you.

(At which time Exhibit 33 was shown in the
courtroom on the big screen. )

BY MR. BUTING:

O Thank you. That is a picture
are the one who took all of these pictures?

A Thatrs correct.
o okay. That is a picture of rt shows sort of

the driver's side area of the RAV_4,. right?
A Correct.

O There is sort of a walkway, or a walk area I
suppose, between the RAV-4 and this red vehicre,
whatever it is?

A Correct.

o By the way, jus. so we're clear, this RAV-4 was

found up arong the ridge area, of the border of
the property; right?

A I woul_dn't know whether lt was the border.
o okay- werr, there is a slngle row of cars up

along that area; right?

20
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A Correct.

O And there they were all sort of ,,bumper to
bumper", lined up like you would parallel park a

bunch of cars along a street; is that correct?
A Correct.

O Thls was the only one that was sort of ,,doubl-e

parked", where it was next to, or where it was

"two by two"; right?
A r don't recafr at this time if it was the only one

that was doubled parked.

o okay' But it was the only one with any kind of
debris piled on it; right?

A Correct.

O It was the only one with any kind of branches
piled on it; correct?

A Cnrraal*

O You said to us that it was obvious that it
appeared that somebody was trying to conceal it;
is that correct?

A Correct.

O In that sense then, that made it very different
than any of the other vehicles; right?

A It made us suspicious, yes.

O It made it stand out, the fact that it was,

because it was t_he only one that was covered like
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A

that; rlght?
That, and the fact that it was similar to the
description of the vehicre that was Teresa,s.
Okay. So, it was not so concealed thar you
coufdn't tell what it was when you got near it;
right ?

Can you rephrase that?
It was not so covered up with items that, when you
got anywhere near it, that you were unable to
determine it was even a RAV_4/ was it?

No, I coufd tell it was a RAV_4.

Okay. So, it was just sitting there, for anyone
to find, who woufd be looklng through the salvage
area; right?
If you were on foot searching, yes.
Okay. Now, from Exhibit 33, you said that you
you were trying to get the VIN number off of the
vehicle; right?

ear raalvv!!vuu.

And the VIN number, for this particular vehicle,
in fact, or for most, I think/ are, it,s on the
dash, kind of at the very end of the windshield,
kind of down by the windshreld wipers,. is that
aa)rra^f ?vvL ! vv u ;

That was where we were looking on this vehicfer les.

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A
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O I don't know if you knew that before, but you
learned it that day; ts that correct?

O you were tol-d by the officers, that your mom was
talking to on the phone, that is where you should
direct your attention?

A After searching elsewhere on the vehicler !€s.
O Okay. By the wdy, that VIN is stamped?

It's in the dash, in black, right there in black
metal ?

A Correct.

v rne VjN rtseff is a black number, just kind of
r:-i corl 2

A Correct..

O Or recessed, bumps, something like that; right?
So, to see it, you have to get pretty cfose, don,t
you ?

A Withinr lou know, eyesightr les.
o rn order to do Lhat, vou have to wark around to

Where did you walk along, from the rear? Did you
approach it from the rear, or did you approach ic
from the front?

A I don't recall that at this time, which way I
approached the vehicre, to check the VrN number.

O Can you get to it either way?
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A (pause)

O f mean, could you come around to the front, and
lean over/ and look from there? Or did you have
to go around the rear, and come up alongside
of the vehicle, in order to get to the front?

A I don't recafl at this rrme.

O Okay. That's fair. Now, you said you warted
around 20 minutes or So, before the first officers
arrrved?

A Approximately 2O minutes.

o But during that time you had retreated. over near
where the crusher was?

A Yes, correct.

O That is what, about 9OO feet, or a thousand feet
away/ or something like that?

A f can only make an approximation. I would say it
would probably be, by blocks, maybe four blocks,
city blocks.

o okay. Then the first to arrive were the Manitowoc
officers ?

A ThaL's correct.

o And did you see a Manitowoc officer wark up toward
the vehicle?

A Correct.

O More than one?

24



1

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

L3

11

15

T6

17

18

19

20

21

22

z)

aA

25

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

I reca]1 one officer
Okay.

approaching the vehicle.
How many Manitowoc officers arrrved first?
( Pause )

One or two?

I don't recall the exact number

arrived.

Sorro r: I ?

nf n€fi -^ -- !L ^!vr rresrJ Ll.ldL

O

A

A

0

r made contact with the one officer, and r remember

the other officer walked to the vehicfe.
Wel1, you were watching carefully, you said, to
see what was going on; right?

(aarva^+

were you watching because you were concerned that
the police might somehow plant something in that
vehicle ?

No.

That thought never occurred. to you, did it?
No.

Of course not. So, your only concern was if
anybody other t.han police officers would come to
the scene of t.he RAV-4 and disturb it in any way;

right? That was your focus?

That, and the focus that we needed to make sure it

A

O

A

a

A
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was her vehic]e.

o sure' so, once the Manitowoc porice officers
arrrved, you were puL at ease a little bit, thar
at least some law enforcement was there; correct?

A f wouldn't say we were "put at ease,,.

O Wel-l, Vou were no longer alone at this strange
auto salvage yard, with other people milling
about; correct?

A Correct.

O Now, there was l_aw enforcement there; rrght?
A Correct.

O And they had guns; right_?

A f woufd assume they had their guns.

o so, your rear- interest at that point was if this
was really Teresa's car? That is what you were
concerned about?

A Correct.

0 And at some point did one of the officers come

back and tefl you that? One of the Manitowoc
officers ?

A r don't recarl if it was a Manitowoc officer, or
Calumet, dL that time.

o okay. How rong was it before the calumet
officers arrived on the scene, if you know?

A I can only make an approximation. I would say 1t

26



O

A

A

O

A

1

2

7

4

5

6

7

8

o

10

11

t2

13

I4

15

16

I1

18

1q

20

2I

22

z)

nA

25

\.{as a few minutes.

Okay. How many of them

f don't recal_t the exact

arrrved.

Were they in marked

f don't recall if it
Were they uniformed?

The detective that I
of f i r-or

officers that

Or unmarked squads?

rked or marked.

uniformed?

was an un-uniformed

arrrved?

number of

O

A

O

A

squads ?

was unma

Or not

spoke to

O

A

O

"Un-uniformed", did you say?

Yeah.

Plain clothes? Did you see any marked Cafumet
squads arrive there in the area of the RAV_4?

I don't reca]l .if it was marked or unmarked.
So, you don't know whether any officers that \.dere

comlng or going were Manitowoc or Calumet; rrght?
Not unless they identified themselves. The plain
clothes detectirre identified himseff as carumet.
So, the one detective identified himself; rrght?
Yes.

And the ot.hers didn't? Or they dld?
I did not have direct contact with all of the
officers who arrived at the scene.

O

A

a

A

O So, you don't recall if they were marked cars, and
you don't remember seeing any carumet uniforms?
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you don't know if the officers who arrived were
from Calumet or Manitowoc; right?

A They don't have dlstinguishing uniforms. They were
alf brown.

O So, they were j ust "police of f icers,, ,. right ?

A Correct.

O But at some point, f believe, on directr lou said
that you did see some Well, let me go back and
ask it this way: Did you see any Manitowoc
uniformed officers at the scene?

A As r said, r didn't distinguish based on thelr
uniforms. They are all brown. So, dt that point in
trme, the people that f spoke to had identified
themselves as Manitowoc, or cafumet. But r didn,t
speak with ever\1 officer t_hat was there.

O When you say "the people that you spoke to,,, it
was one person that you spoke to; right?

A No, r spoke to both Manitowoc and calumet county
officers.

O You did?

A Correct.

O Maybe I am misunderstanding. f apologize. Were
they wearing uni_forms? Or plain clothes?

A Plain-clothes detectives.
o So, you tarked to two plain-clothes detectives?
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A

O

A

O

One sald he was from Manitowoc, and one said he
was from Calumet?

That's right.

So, you saw somebody that was uniformed approach
rne RAV-A 0r not?

A uniformed officer did approach the RAV_4.

Okay. Did you ever see somebody that you could
readily discern was a Calumet County offrcerr ds
opposed to a Manitowoc offtcer, come up and
relieve the Manitowoc officer, who was near the
RAV_4 ?

I couldn't discern whether they were Manrtowoc or
Cafumet.

Okay . So r )zou don r

officers took over

itself, do you?

No.

L know if or when

responsibility for

any Calumet

that RAV-4

A

O

A

O

You said you were there at the property, the Avery
salvage property until about noon or 12:30?
That's correcr.

But before that timer lou and

sort of retreated from the car
farther north, over toward the

your mother had

crusher area/

entryway, didn't

A

you ?

No, we stayed near the car crusher area
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O So, you stayed near the car crusher, when you
gave your statements?

A YAe

O And the entire time you were on that property,
you were ;ust right near the car crusher?

A YAq

O You never went anywhere else further away to t.alk
with officers by any other vehicles?

A By what vehicles?

o By any other vehiclesr o. any other area of the
10t /

A No.

o You were standing next to your mot.her the whole
trme?

A YAq

O Okay. Now, Ms. Sturm, have you ever locked
yourself out of your car?

A YAA

O Did you calll the police to help you ger rn?
A No.

0 Do you know anybody else who has?

A No.

O Do you know, Lf you needed to, if you coufdn,t find
anyone else to get your keys, to get into your
vehicle, you could call a police officer, and
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A

O

A

O

he would help you get into your vehicle; right?
I called a locksmith.

Okay. But do you know you could call an

officer? Many times people do carl officers for
that purpose?

No. When it happened to me, I called the locksmith.
MR. BUTING: Okay. Thank you. No further

questrons.

THE COURT: Mr. Kratz?

REDIRECT EXAMTNATION BY MR. KRATZ:

Ms. Sturm, the defense attorney had asked you

about looking in the vehicfe, and whet.her you

could see inside the vehicle. Do you remember

those questions?

Yes.

Was it easy to see into those windows?

No, it was not easy.

I will have you take a look at Exhibit 33,

although we wiIL be looking at some others. Is
there anything different about the rear windows,

than the front driver,s windows?

The rear windows had a tint to them, and, as you can

see from the picture here, ds f'm sure other people
have done, there is glare in the windows. So , Lf
you really wanted to see inside, and if you weren,t
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O

A

O

concerned about not trying to disrupt the scene at
all, you would have to cup your hands over the
vehicle, to make sure you were blocking out the
glare, and the shadows, which we didn,t do.
You did not do?

No.

I will show you Exhibit number 30, and ask you to
describe the tint on the back windows?

The rear and back windows were darkly tinted. The

front windshield and the driver's and passenger,s
doors were not. So, once again, vou can see t.here
is deflnitely a "glare".
Ms. Sturm, whether the officers were Calumec

County or Manitowoc County, did any offlcer
approach that vehicle?

No officer touched the vehicle while we were

present.

Did you see any officer pull out a device/ or try
to pry open the door, or anything like that, while
you were there?

No.

A

A

O

Yes, definitely.

If that would have happened, would you have
eaan i 'l-')

IL:

MR T<PA.|'7. n t,rlr\nl a. r,,13!
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Sturm.

MR. BUTING: Nothing further.
THE COURT: Very well, you are excused.
MR. KRATZ: The State will cafl Bobby Dassey

to the stand.

BOBBY DASSEY, being first duly sworn on oath
to tefl the trul_h, the whole truth, and nothing but
the truth, testified as follows:

mTlr 71rntr ULERK: State your full name and spell
your fast name please.

THE WITNESS: Bobby Dassey, D_A_S_S_E_y.

DIRECT EXAMTNATION BY MR. KRATZ:

O Mr. Dassey, how old are you?

A )n

O Can you tell us where you live please?
A Right outside of Michicot on Avery Road.

O Do you know the defendant, Steven Avery?
A Yes, he is my uncle.

a you have to speak up just a little bit please?
A Yes, he is my uncle.

O fs he in the courtroom here at this trme?
A Yes, he is.

O Woufd you point him out for the record, and telf
the Judge where he is seated?

A Right over there, to my right.
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O Sitting next to his two arrorneys?
A YAE

MR' KRATZ: Judge, r would ask the record to
reffect the defendant's identificatton.

THE COURT: The record wili reflect the
witness identified Mr. Avery.

BY MR. KRATZ:

O Mr. Dassey, do you know where, dt least during the
fall of 2005, prior to November fifth, where your
uncl-e fived?

A Yes. He lived right next door to us.

o r wifl ask you to describe the kind of residence
that, first of all, that you live in?

A We live in, I would say, a mobile home, a

three-bedroom house, mobile home.

O On October thirty_first , 2A05, who all lived in
your home?

A My mom, my step-dad, and my two younger brothers.
O What were the names of your younger brothers?
A Blaine and Brenclan.

O Bfaine and Brandon?

A Brendan.

o Bobby, do you recall october thirty-first of 2oob?
A YOA

O Could you tell the jury if you were employed
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at thal time?

A yes, r was. r worked at Fischer Hamirton,s, third
shift.

O What time would you start work on any day?
A r wourd start at ten at night and work untir six in

the morning.

O On October t.hirty_first of 2005, could you tell
the jury if you were home during the daytime
hours ?

A Yes, f was.

O And how late, or how long were you home until?
A I was home untiL 2:30 that day.

O What were you doing before 2:30?
A I was sleeping.

O When you say ,,2:30,,, are you talking about the
afternoon or morning?

A In the afternoon.

O To your knowled<;e, Bobby, was anybody else at hone
with you?

A No.

o Do you remember anything urrusuar that happened at-

about 2:3A that afternoon?

A A vehicle had drove up, and started taking pictures
of the van.

O All right. Let's back up just a minute. Were you
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stifl sleeping? Or did you wake up?

A f was up by 2:3A, !eah.
O At 2:30, did you see something?

A YAE

O What did you see?

A f seen a vehicle pull up in our driveway.
o Do you recarf which window you were rooking from?
A Through the front window, in front of the kitchen

{_-l-t ^

O Bobby, could you describe that vehlcle for the
lury please?

A It was a light green SUV, like a ,,teal,, color.
O How do you know that it was about 2:30 in the

afternoon?

A Because r was going hunting that night, So that was

the time f wanted to get up. I got up at ,,two,,.

o Arl right - From which way did this brue or teal
SUV drive in, as you were looking out the window?

A Toward the west it would be.

O Can you telt the jury please from which

direction your uncre's trailer is from your house?
A The wesr,

O Did you know what kind of SUV it was?

A Not at the time.

a All right. After seeing that vehicle driving up
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the roadway, tell the jury what you saw then?
A r seen Teresa Harbach get out of the vehicle, and

started taking pictures.
O What was she taking pictures of?
A A maroon van.

O A what.?

A A maroon van.

o can you telr us about this vehicre? where was it
parked?

A It was parked right in front of our house.

o Now you told this jury it was Teresa Halbach that
had taken the pictures. How do you know that?

A Now, I know that. At the time, I didn,t_.
O What did this woman look like?
A she was about maybe five-eight. She had brown,

shorter-rike hair. she had a brack coat oD, that
went past the hips.

O Was she wearing pantsz or a skirt?
A She was wearing pants.

O Now, about this van/ what can you tell the jury
about that van?

A rt was a 1989 prymouth voyager. rt had lots of
miles on it. rt was my mom's van. She had it for
a couple of years. f don't know really much more

about it.
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O A11 right. As you were looking out the window,
you said that )/ou saw a woman taklng pictures.
Can you describe that please?

A we.', r seen her take one picture of the front of
the van. Then f went in and took a shower.

O Okay. After seeing her taking some prctures, did
you see her do anything else?

A She started Before f got in the shower, she
actually started walking over to steven,s 1_railer.

O You coufd see that from your locatron?
A Yeah. Through the window, yeah.

o You said, "walking toward Steven's trailer,,. what
does that mean?

A She walked toward it, to the door.

O How cfose to the door did she 9et, before you

stopped watchincJ?

A Maybe 25 yards.

O Did you see her enter your uncle,s trailer?
A No.

O Why not?

A Because r wanl-ed to take a shower. r didn,t pay no

at.tention to it.
o Arr right. was there anybody with her at that

trme?

A No.
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o was there anybody outside, or making contact with
her, outside by the vehicle?

A No.

o After seeingr this woman warking toward your uncle
Steven's trailer, did you ever see this woman

again?

A No.

o How long was it that you were in the shower? Do

you remember?

A Maybe three minutes, of four minutes.

O Okay. What did you do then?

A Got dressed, and left, Lo go hunting.
O Now, when you left to go hunting, did you have a

vehicle on the premises?

A Yes.

o can you tell the jury what kind of vehicre it was?

A A black Chevy Bl,azer.

O Where was that parked?

A rt was parked rlght between the house and the
garage.

O About what tlme do you think you feft to go

hunt ing?

A Probably twenty to three, quarter to three.
O Quarter to three? Bobby, how do you know that

was the time? why is that time important as it
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rel-ates to hunting?

A Well-, that is when the deer start moving. They go

on thelr feeding patterns then.

O Pardon?

A They go on their feeding patterns then.
O Where did you go hunting that day?

A rt was actually maybe two miles up the road from my

house.

O What kind of hunting was it?
A Deer hunting. Bow hunting.

O Mr. Dassey, when you walked out to your vehrcle
to go bow hunting, did you notice if that tear or
blue SUV was stifl- in the driveway?

A Yes, it was.

O It was?

A Yes.

O Did you see Ms. Halbach?

A No.

O Did you see any signs of her at all?
A Nope.

O What did you do then?

A r proceeded to reave. r got in my vehicle and r

O Did you hunt that day?

A Yes.
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O Did you get anything that day?

A No. f seen two deer. f didn,t get anything, Do.

O Al1 riqht. After deer hunting, what did you do?
A came home, and r raid down, and r went to sreep

agortl.

a What time did you get home? Do you recall?
A It was "five-ish".

O Now, when you drove back home at about five
o'cl_ock in the afternoon, was Ms. Halbach,s
vehicl-e still visibte?

A No.

O What did you do when you got home?

A r watched TV for a little bit, then r went to bed.
O Did you go to sleep?

A YAq

O How long did you sleep?

A Probably three hours.

O Let me back up .just a few minutes, Bobby. At any
trme during the morning or early afternoon hours,
did you receive any phone calls at your residence?

A No. Not that I am aware of.
O Why don't you tell us what that means, ,,not that

you are aware of"?
A I am a real deep sleeper. When I sleep, I don,t

hear nothing.
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O

A

O

A

O

A

O

If the phone rings, wou.ld you have heard it?
No.

After getting up that afternoon, did you check for
any messages r ar check the answering machine?

No.

Now, you mentioned that, while you were home that
d.y, you didn't think anybody was home when you
got up and when you left. After you went bow

hunting, was anybody home at that time?
No.

Are you familiar with your

that is, your brothers that
f gJ.

brothers' schedules,

were at school?
A

O

A

O

What brothers went to school at that time?
Blalne and Brendan.

Are you familiar: with when Braine and Brendan

usually got home from school?

They usually got home at quarter to four.
That would be 3:45?

3:45, yeah.

So, about an hour after you would have l_eft to go

deer hunting?

rEJ.

When you got home at about five o'clock, Bobby,

were Blaine and Brendan home?

A

O

A

O

A

O
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A f can't recafl.
O AII right. Nolv, you have a fourth brotherr or a

third brotheri is that correct?
A YOC

O What is his name?

A His name is Brian.

O Do you know where Brran was at the i-tme?
A He was at work.

o Now, was Brian living at your home at the time
too ?

A No.

O Where was Brian staying at the time?
A He lived in Manitowoc with his girlfriend.
0 What is your mother's name?

A Barb.

O And is Barb related to Mr. Avery, if you know?
A YAE

O How?

A Sister. Brother and sister.
O When you got up and went bow hunting, and left for

bow huntj-ng, was your mother home at that time?
A No, she was at work.

O When you got home from deer hunting, was your
mother home yet?

A No.
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O Do you recafl your mom coming homer or seeing
her that night?

A when r got up at nine o'clock, r seen her.
O All right. I think f asked this, Bobby. f,m

sorry. But what time did you start work?
A I started work at ten-

O Ten p.m.?

A Y.p, ten p.m.

o where is the place that you work? what city is it
l-ocated in?

A Two Rivers.

O Bobby, the rest of that week, after the
thirty-flrst of october, do you recall the rest of
that week?

A Some of it.
o That weekend, tirat l-riday and sat.urday, the fourth

and fifth, did other family members go somewhere

that weekend?

A Yeah, they went up north.

O What does "up north" mean?

A Up to Crivitz.
O Do you know what is up rn Crivitz?

A My grandpa has a cabin up there.
0 Do you know what famiry members went up north that

weekend?

44



1

2

J

4

5

o

1

8

9

10

1i

T2

13

t4

-tf

IO

1'.7

18

1Q

20

21

22

LJ

1A

25

O

A

O
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O

Steven, Brendan went, and Brran went, and my

and grandpa were up there.
Steven, Brendan, and Brian? you didn,1_ go?

Nope.

Do you remember why you didn,t go?

f had to work that Sunday night.
Let's go back to the thirty_firstr lour work
schedufe. you said that you worked at ten
o'clock; is that right?

Do you remember what time you left home for work?
Probably about 9:30.

At 9:30 p.m. on the thirty_first of October, did
you see anything when you left your house?

Not that I recalf.

Did you see anything by your uncle,s?
I didn't even look.

Now, that weekend, the Saturday, the fifth of
November, do yo1-l recall that day at al_I?

No.

Do you remember something being found on the Avery
property that Saturday?

Her rzahi nl a

That is the day f'm talking about.
remember that day?

grandma

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O
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A Not really.

O Alt right. Do you remember where you were when

that vehicle was found?

A I was by my friend's house.

O What is your friend's first name?

A Mike.

O How were you notified, if you remember, that
Teresa's vehicle was found on the Avery property?

A I'he TV and my mom.

O Now, Bobby, dt the time, back on the thirty_first
of October, did you have any pets?

A Yes, r had just got a black lab. She was two months

ofd.

O Was that an "inside", or "outside" dog?

A fnside dog.

O On the thirty-first of October, when you went

hunting, did you take your dog with you?

A No.

O When you went to your friend Mike,s house on

Saturday, the fifth, did you take your black lab
with you?

A No.

o were you abre to get back home on the fifth of
November?

A No.
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O Tell us why not?

A They had the road arl blocked off. They wouldn,t
fet anybody in there.

O Who is "they"?

A The police officers.
0 How about your dog? What happened to your black

lab ?

A I had to wait, like, three hours, in order to get
her.

O fn order to get her?

A Va:h

O How did you get her?

A r had to give my statement and everything. Then the
investigator went in and got her.

O They got your dog for you?

A Basically, yeah.

O Now, Bobby, on the third of November, that would

be a Thursday, f believe, do you recall having a

conversation with your Uncle steven regarding a

body?

A Yac

o could you telr us what your Uncre Steven told you

lhat day?

A werl, ry buddy, Mike, was over too, and he asked us,

rt sounded like he was joking, honestly, he asked us
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if we wanted to help get rid of a body.
O your Uncle Steven asked you if you wanl_ed to help

get rid of a body?

a so11.

O What was your response?

A ttNott.

o Bobby, are you familiar with a Suzuki Samurai, a
gray Suzuki Samurai?

A YAC

O Where was that vehicle please?
A That was in Steven's garage. He was going to fix rt

up.

O On the thirty_first of October, do you recafl
where that Suzuki Samurai was?

A I don't even know.

O Do you remember, gtenerally, where rt was parked?
A No.

O If you don't know, that's fine.
A I don't know.

O A11 rlght. Bobby, have you ever seen a fire, lire
a bonfire, by your Uncle Steven,s?

A YAq

0 Do you remember the rast time you saw a bonfire by
your Uncle Steven's?

A Maybe two weeks before that, before this all
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happened.

O There is Let me just ask you: fs there some

prace where your uncle Steven would have fires?
A Yes, right behind his garage.

O Can you describe that area for us?

A It was just a mound of gravel that he, basically,
burned stuff on.

MR. KRATZ: ff f could have a moment with
counsel, Judge?

(At which time Mr. Kratz consulted with
other counsel about some photographs. 

)

BY MR. KRATZ:

O Bobby, we have had some photographs marked. I
will have you identify some of these, in fact,
al-l of them, to help the jury understand what we

are talking about. The first. exhibit I want you

to take a look at is Exhibit Number 3i. Can

you telf us what that is please?

(While the witness was looking at the
exhibit, and before he began his answer, Mr.

Strang made the followrng statement. )

MR. STRANG: While he is doing that, lour
Honor, I have a concern that I want noted now, and

that I would like the raise outside of the jury,s
presence, between the direct and cross of Mr.
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Dassey.

THE COURT: Are you saying you would like to
raise it oui_ of the jury,s presence now? Or later?

MR. STRANG: No, not now. If we can take
that up between the direct and the cross, that would
be fine.

THE COURT: Very welf.
BY MR. KRATZ:

O Tetf us what Exhibit 3j is please?
A That. is Steven's trailer.
O Steven

A -- Avery's trailer.
(At which time Exhibit 3i was shown in the

courtroom on the big screen. )

O I will let the jury now see Exhibit 3j. Can you
telf us kind of what else is shown there? What
are we looking at?

A welf, the red thing is steven's trailer. The garage
is to the r-eft. That is his truck srtting there,
and thal- is his burning barref right in front of the
house.

MR. KRATZ: If f could have one moment,

Judge?

(At which time Mr. Kratz had a brief
discussion with Mr. Strang, in low tones, off the
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record/ out of the hearing of everyone else in the
courtroom. )

BY MR. KRATZ:

o r wilr give you a raser pornter. There is a

button there. Using the Iaser pointer, again,
Bobby, can you show us where Steven,s trailer is?

A Steven's trailer is right there.
O Okay. you mentioned a burning barrel?

A The burning barrel woufd be right there.
O Whose burning barrel is that?

A That would be Steven's burning barrel.
O Where is Steven's garage?

A Right there.

o All right. The next exhibit is number 38. can
you tell us whaL that is please?

A (Pause).

O lt's in front of the nexr pfcture, 38?

A Just another picture of steven's trailer and his
garagie.

o rt's a little different angle; is that right?
A Yes.

O I will now let the jury look at Exhibit 38.

TeII us what we are looking at please?

A Basically, just rooking at steven's trailer again,
and his garage, and his truck.

51



1

2

J

4

5

7

8

9

10

11

72

1J

T4

lf

16

T1

18

19

20

2I

22

,La

.)^

25

O What is Exhibit 39 please?

A ltrs a closer shot of Steven,s trailer.
o Now we're retting the jury see Exhibit 39. where

would Steven's main entrance be? How do you get
in the trailer?

A Through the door right by the step rrght there.
O The record will refl-ect that you are pornting to

the entrance furthest to the right of this
traifer; is that correct?

A Yes.

O Does the photograph help you, or could you

describe for the jury about how close Ms. Harbach
was to that trailer, when you stopped watching her
approach?

A She was probabll, right about t_here.

a Looking which way?

A Toward the trailer, west.

O Exhibit 40 is the next exhibit. Would you

describe what that is please?

A Just a closer view of Steven's front door.
O That is the door we were talking about?

MR. KRATZ: We fost our batteries here,
Judge.

(The photographs which had been shown on the
Large screen in the courtroom/ were not able to be
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O

seen' untir new batteries could be lnstalled in the
remote control device. )

BY MR. KRATZ:

whire we are getting new bat.teries for our remote
nnnfr^l T -uLrlrLro-L/ I Will ask you some other questlons,
Bobby. First of all, how often would your Uncle
Steven have fires at hls property?

Maybe one or two every month.

You mentioned that Steven Or you identified, at
''l^^^rreast, Stevenrs garage. Who uses Steven,s garage?

Steven does.

Does anybody else have access to rt?
At that timer rio.

A11 right. Even though the batteries are not
changed yet, or they are kind of going bad, we

will do the best we can until we get some new

ones. This is Iixhibit 40, that you have
identlfied. What are we looking at here?

That is Steven's front door, the main entrance.
There is what looks like a deck that goes around.
the traifer. Can you explain that please?

Yes, it is basically a deck that runs around the
whole traifer. Ile has got a little ,,plateau,, at the
end.

AII right Do you see the next prcture tn front

A

O

A

a

A

O

A

O

A

O
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of Vou, Exhibit 4I?

O Can you tell us what that is please?
A That is just a picture of the door to the far left

of the traifer.
O All right. We are now letting the jury look at

Exhr_brt 4I. Again, what are we looking at?
A That is just another door to steven,s trailer.
O Now, on the left there, the feft_most edge of

Exhibit Number 4I, is that the door that you are
talklng about?

A YAE

O Do you know where that door goes?

A rt goes into the hallway of the trairer, crosesL to
the bedroom in the back.

o Have you been in Steven's traifer before?
A YOq

O On the thirty-first of October, did you have

keys to Steven's traifer?
A No.

O Do you know if anyone else from your home had

keys to his trailer?
A No.

O No, "you don't know" ? Or, oo, "they didn,t,,?
A No one did.
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O A11 right. The next exhibit in front of you is
Exhibit 42. TeIl us what that is?

A This 1s a picture of the back of Steven,s trairer.
o Do you want to take the raser pointer, now that

the jury can see Exhibit 42? Why don,t you tel-
us what we are looking at?

A This is the back side. This side faces north. That
is the back of Steven's trailer. That is his pool.

o Now, there is a back patio door on that trailer?
A YAA

O Can you show us that_ please?

A That would be right there.

MR. KRATZ: Just so the record is clear,
Judqe, he is pointing at what would be just about
the very middle of the trailer.

BY MR. KRATZ:

O That is the patio door; is that correct, Bobby?
A YAq

O What kind of pool is that?
A Just a pool that is like four feet deep.

o okay. Exhibit 43 is the next exhibit in front of
you. Can you tell us what that is?

A Just another view of the back of Steven,s trairer.
O Now we will let the jury take a look. It,s a

different angler pretty much the same as trxhibit
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42?

A YAe

o which way have we moved around? or the camera?
A Which way?

\z f, Ect.l 1.

A It has moved to the right, south.
a Exhibit 43 shows Stevenrs back patio door?

A YAq

O Could you show us that please?

A Right there.

O Now, behind Steven's trailer, Exhibit __ Excuse
me. Behind Steven,s garage, did Steven have a

dog house?

A Yoa

0 Does Exhibit 43 show that?
A YOE

O If you could point out the dog house for us
nla:qa?
r+vqsv i

A Riqht there.

o Directly behind the dog house, what is that area?
A That would be the burning pit.
0 You had mentioned, Bobby, before abour seerng the

fires at Steven's. Where on this property did you
see those fires?

A Right there.
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O Directly behind this garage?

A YAe

A The next exhibit that we are asking you to
identify is Exhibit 44. Tell us what that is
please ?

A This 
's 

another shot of steven,s house and the
garage.

O Now the jury can see Exhibit 44. What are we

looking at?

A Basicarly, you are rooking at steven,s trailer
agaln/ the garaqe, and the dog house, and his truck.
Again, right there is where he had his burning plt.

O His burning pit?
f Eelt.

o Now, this exhibit, that is Exhibit 44, do you know

about where this was taken from?

A Thls actuarly was taken right in front of our house.
O Is this east r or west, or north, or south of

Steven's trailer? Do you know?

A It would be east.

0 okay. The next exhibit is Exhibit 45. can you

telf us what that is please?

A That is a picture of Steven,s garage.

o Again, now that the jury can see Exhibit Number

45, why don't you take the laser polnter and
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tell us what we are looking at-?

A Basically, that is just Steven,s garage again, and
his truck' That is the door he mainry used to the
garage.

O That is what? you have to speak up.
A That is the door he mainly used for the garage.
0 Kind of a servrce door ?

A Yeah.

O All right. The next exhibit is Number 46. Can
you teff us what that is please?

A Another picture of Steven,s garage.

O AlI riqht. Exhibit 46, now that the lury can
see it, again, can you explain what we are looking
-ta

A Just another picture of Steven,s garage.
O fs the service door open r ar closed?
A It's open.

O That burning pit, or burn area/ can you tell us
where that is on this prcture?

A rt woufd be right there, where t.hat white graver is.
O Right behind the garage?

A YAC

O What is Exhibit 4i?

A A plcture of Steven's burning pit.
o A11 right. Now that the jury can see Exhlbit 4i,
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why don't you ;ell us what we are looking at?
A you are just looking at Steven,s burning pit,

directly behind the garage.

O Do you recoqnize anything else 1n this picture?
A There is a seat.

O What do you mean, ',a seat,,?

A From a vehicle, right there, and his trailer is
there. The dog coop ls there.

o Bobby, had you seen that seat out by there by your
Uncfe Steven's house?

A Not that I recalf.
o Now on Exhibit Number 4J, if you can show us, more

specifically, where the burning happened, where
the burn area is?

A Right around there.

a There is a blackened area, which would be just
west and just right of the car seat. rs that the
place that you are pointing?

O What is the next exhibit?
A The picture directly behind Steven,s garage.
O That ls Exhibit 48; is that right?

A YAq

o Now that the jury can see Exhibit 48, telr- us what
we're looking at?
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O

A

O

A

O

A

O

Basically, the back of Steven,s tra
the dog coop again. That is where

woufd be.

il-er. There is
his burnlng pit

A

O

A

O

The dog "what"?

The dog "coop".

The dog coop, C-O-O-p?

Yeah r or dog house.

Where is Steven's garage?

Right there.

That is the building r,o the
exhibit; is that correct?

Where is Steven's trailer?

very rlght of the

Right there.

So, the red building, just to the west;
atorror'l_ ?

Yes.

Again, where is the burn area?

This is partially shown in the picture,

is that

to the far
south of the picture.
The next exhibit is Number 49.

what this is please?

Tell the jury

Another picture of behind Steven's
Now that. the jury can see Exhibit
agal-n tell us what we are looking

A

O

A

A

O

garage.

Aq r^rnrrlrl.'t vrvu4v yuu
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A 'fust 100klng at the same picture as before, that dog
house, the garage, his trailer. That is where the
burning pit would be.

O What is the next exhibit, 50?

A A picture of the burnrng pit, just at a different
angle.

o There is something else in this picture, &s welr-;
is that correct?

n \'

O What is that?
A That is hls dog.

O Do you know the name of that dog?

A His name is "Bear".

O "Bear" ?

A YAA

O Whose dog was il-rat?

A Steven's.

O Pointing to Exh:,bit 50, can you show us the area
where things wel:e burned?

A Right there.

0 That would be directly in front of the dog?
A Yoa

o can you tell us about "Bear"? would the animal,
the dog of steven Avery, usualry be an inside dog
or an outside dog?
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A Outside dog.

O Do you know how long Bear,s chain was, where
Bear would be able to wander?

A !'ltteen feet.

O Okay. Now in the back of this picrure, the
background of Exhibit 50, do you see any vehicfes?

O What do you see?

A The maroon plymouth Voyager.

O Can you point that out?
A Yes, right there.

O That car is not far, or;ust to the right of the
garage ?

o That is the same vehicle you saw Teresa Halbach
taking photos o.[?

O f don't know if you are able to answer this,
Bobby, but r wifl ask you. what was Bear's
personality, or demeanor like, if you know? Do

you know whal_ I'm asking you?

A He was really calm.

o The next picture is Exhibit 51. what is that
please ?

A That is a picture of Steven's burn barrel.
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O Where was this burn barrel located?
A Northwest of Steven,s trarler.
O fn the background of that picturer lou also see

a vehicle; is that correct?
A Yes.

O What vehicfe is that?
A That is the plymouth Voyager again.
o you arso see a road between the burn barrel and

the vehicle; is that correct?
A YOC

O Can you describe that road for us please?
A That wourd be the driveway reading down to Steven,s

]_r:ila-

O Now, Mr. Dassey, does Exhibit 51 help you, or
could you help explain or show the lury where you
saw Ms. Halbach walking, before you took your
shower?

A She was walking right about there, walked right
through there.

O Walking in a westerly direction toward Steven,s?
A YAq

o The next exhibit is Exhibit 52. Tert us what that
is please?

A That would be a picture of our burning barrels.
O What do you mean "our burning barre-ls,,?
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A My mom's burning barre-Ls.

O How many were there?
A Three.

O Are you sure?

A I don't know. J thought there was three.
O Okay. Where were the burn barrel_s located?
A fn our back yard, right behind our qarage.
O And this picture has some people in rt. Do you

know who those people are?
A No.

O Now, to the leftr or behind the burn barrels are
some vehicfes. Do you know how far away those
are? In other words, how cl-ose to your property
we are looking at?

A (pause)

O That's a bad question. Let me try lr agarn. The
burn barrels, how close were they to the edge of
what would be your mom,s property?

A 25 yards r or 30 yards.

o The next exhibit is Exhibit 53. This is going to
look famifiar, but what is that?

A Just another view of Steven,s trailer.
O From a littfe different angle; is that right?

A YAq

O What is Exhibit 54?
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O

A

O

A

That 1s a picture of our house, frV momrs house.
Let's talk about that a littre bit, now that the
jury can see Exhibit s4. please take the raser
pointer and tell them what t_hey are looking at?
This is, basically, my mom,s house. That is our
golf cart.
Your what?

Our golf cart.
Okay.

This woul-d be the side of the house to the
farthest west. The burning barrefs would be right
back there. you can't see them on there.
Could you tell us, or show us in this picture, the
window that you were looking out when you watched
Ms. Halbach?

That window right there.
okay' And r know that the vehicre for sale is not
shown on this picture, but which direction was rt?
Can you kind of show us?

ft would be right over there.
To the right, off screen?

Yes.

The next exhibit is Exhibit 55, can you tell us

what that woufd be?

That would be my mom's answerang machine.

A

O

A

0
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O Where was that located?

A fn our living room.

o Again/ now that the jury is able to see Exhibit
55, what kind of answering machine was it? Do you

know?

A No.

O fs there a phone that went with it?
A Yes.

O Where did the phone go?

A I don't know.

O But, what I mean is, was the phone placed on

a cradle r or something, on this phone?

A Yes.

O Where is that?

A ftrs not on there.

O Okay. Had you ever used that answering machine?

A No, I don't use it at all.
O Have you ever retreived a message from that

answerrng machine?

A Yes.

O How do you retreive a message from it?
A You just hit "pfay".

O The next exhibit for the jury is Exhibit 56.

Have you ever seen that before?

A Yes. That would be my grandmother's.
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THE COURT:

Kratz, it's 10:30.

brea k .

Just a second.

I think we wifl

I thlnk, Mr.

take our morning

tt{R. KRATZ: We can certainly do that, Judqe.
THE COURT: I will remind you, again,

members of the jury, not to discuss the case at any
tl-me during the course of the triaf , including
during any breaks. We will see you in 15 minutes.

(At which time the jury left the courtroom.
Then the following proceedings continueo rmmediat.ely
in the courtroom, out of the presence of the :ury.)

THE COURT: you may be seated. Mr . Kratz,
did you have something first?

MR. KRATZ: yes. Since there are several
photos, r believe we have received a stipuration as

to their admissibility. I understand that each

shoufd be shown one at a time, but r think the court
knows the technclogical rimitations that we are
having, trying to toggle through this remore

control, So that only one is shown at a tame , or
only after Mr. Dassey identifies what it is.

I'm wondering if there is a better way, or
if there is an opportunity that we may show these in
a more efficient fashion, perhaps one photo after
another, without having to go to a blue screen every

61



1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

10

.t1

12

t3

1^l+

15

t6

1',]

18

10

20

2I

22

-2. )

a/4

25

1- r ma

I can certainly do that. ft,s Mr. Strang,s
call. f understand that, Judge. This ts srmply a

request to make it a }ittfe easier for the;ury to
watch these, and look at these exhibits, which I
believe had been stipulated as to their
admissibility.

THE COURT: Mr. Strang?

MR. STRANG: I think we should conrlnue to
do it this way. There is a concern, or I lmaqine
there are many witnesses, who wifl have as many

photographs to go through. The concern is not the
authenticity of the photographs, or their
admissibility, but rather the kind of things that
appear on the screen.

When Mr. Kratz has the fap top on his desk,
he can stop the projecting of them up there before
one exhlbit has been selected, and, you know, this
is just a good method to do it, because we may get
some photographs where, for some reason or not, they
ought not to be published to the lury, whether
because the wi-tness can't identify it, or whatever

THE COURT:

MR. KRATZ: A]1 I can do i_s

All right.

That's fine
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ask, Judge. I understand.

THE COURT: Mr. Strang, was there something
else you wished to take up?

MR. STMNG: There was. There is the matter
that I raised, and noted that f want_ed it recorded,
that r had raised the matter, but it could wait for
our break to raise it. r wanted to do some checking
through the discovery too, before I did rt.

My recollection of Bobby Dassey,s testrmony
was that he said that on Thursday, November 3, 2A05,
rn the presense of Bobby Dassey, and his friend,
Mike he didn't identify him further than as

"Miketr -- that steven Avery asked if they wanted to
help get rid of a body, or "the body". I,m not
clear. I didn't. write this down better.

But at t.he time Bobby said that he thought
SLeve was joking about that, and it was shortly
after that testimony that r interjected briefly, as

r did.

We have no written summary of an interview
of Bobby Dassey, in which that statement is recited.
So, the immediate concern was disclosure of oral
statemenls of the defendant, that the state intends
to use at trial, I think, under Section
e]r.23 (1) (b) .
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We do have a Calumet County Sheriff,s
Department report of a contact with Michael
osmunson, o-s-M-u-N-s-o-N, where, for counsel,s
benefit' and the court's, rs page 25g of the calumet
County Sheriff's Department report. That report,
which is no. an interview of Bobby Dassey, recites a

st.atement of this Michael Osmunson, that he and
Bobby were inside the Dassey garage, when Steven
came over, and he goes on from there.

f think probably here, the best thing for
me to do is, what r wilf do is just read this for
the Court's benefit now, and make this a Court
Exhibit, page 259 of the report. The first chance r
9et, we will make a copy of it. I wilf read the
refevant paragraph in its entrrety.

"Michael- indicated the onry time he had been
at the Avery property between 10_31_05 and 11_14_05
was on Thursday, 11_10_05. He stated he and Bobby
were inside the Dassey garage when Steven came over.
Michaer indicated he was aware Steven was one of the
last people to see the mlssing girl, and jokingly
asked Steven if Steven had her (the missrng girl) in
a cfoset. At this point Steven asked Michael if
Michaef wanted to "help bury the body,,, and they
laughed about this together. Michael stated he had

10
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;ust rearned about the missing girl 0n the Tuesday
nri ^r +^ rL^1,r-Lur LO rnat. He once again indicated he thought
Steven might have been the last one to see the
missing girl." End of the relevant paragraph.

Although the following one sentence
paragraph says, "According to Michael, Steven stated
people go missing all the time and this girl may
have reft r or [dy, quote, ,,have ]eft for Mexico.,,
Period, close quote.

Now, although we have been tord that Bobby
is in the garage at the same time, there rs no

indication that Bobby overhears the statement.
Moreover, there was a dlfferent context for the
statement laid cut here than what Bobby gave. That
is, Michael himself is joking with Steven, ;esting
with him about having the girl in the closet. This
is clearly a joking response to the jest.

We have "help bury the body,,, instead of
"help geL rid of the body". But, most srgnrficant
of a1l, this conversation clearly takes place on

Thursday, November tenth , 2005, not Thursday,
November 3, 2005. And Michael Osmunson says he had
just learned about. the missing girr on the Tuesday
prror to that. Itlerr, that has to be Tuesday,

November eighth, because on November I, no one had

17
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reported Teresa Halbach missrng.

I was not concerned about Michae] Osmunson

being a witness in this case. Why? Because Steven
Avery was arrested on November 9, 2005, and he has
been continuously in custody since then, and was not
in the Dassey garage r or Janda garage r oT anyone

efse's garager ort Thursday, November 10, 2005.

Now we have a different witness, to whom

this statement has never been attributed, of which
we have no sumrnary identifying him as someone who

overheard the statement, or ldentifying a statement,
as having been Bobby Dassey, dS the individual
identified, or critically identifying the statement
as having been m.ade on November 3, as a time when

Steven Avery was not in custody, was at homer or in
the salvage yard property, and the implication is
this may have been before Teresa Hafbach even is
reported missing.

fn large part, that implication arrses
because we didn'1, have the joke that was made to
Steven Avery as the precursor of this. So, what

f'm feft with is this jury having heard testrmony
from the first blood relative of Mr. Avery to
testify here, his nephew and next_door neighbor,
that amounts to a confession of a crime, and under

12
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the circumstances, although, technically, because
Bobby is listed in the report of contact with
Michael osmunson, technically, the discovery statute
here may have been compried with. r have not rooked
at the case faw under the discovery statutes, but,
settrng that aside, this comes as an unfair
surprl-se.

It's materially different than the summary

or the statement of which we have been given notice.
There is no way to unwind this from the ;uror,s
minds. It has enormous unfair prejudicial impact.
f can think of no remedy, short of asking for a

mistriaf, oil the introduction of this testimony by
the State on the direct examination of Bobby Dassey,
without having b'een invited by the defenser or the
defense otherwise having opened the door, or done

anything to which you could say this would be an

rnvited response.

I move, therefore, for a mistrial on the
grounds I have explained.

THE COURT: Mr. Kratz?

MR. KRATZ: Well, Judge, after Mr. Strang
concedes that the discovery statute was complied
with r or I guess in his words, "may very well have

been complied with", r will leave the }egar analysis

13
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to the Court- A summary of this conversatron was
provided, and arthough rt appears that this Michaer
fellow got the Thursday wrong/ as far as being the
third versus the tenth, because Mr. Strang rs
correct, that as of the tenth, Steven Avery was in
custody.

This witness did testify consistently with
what the story was, that he believed his uncre
Steven was joking, that it was said in a joking
manner, and, if Mr. Sl_rang wishes to inqurre as to
the context of it, he may do so on cross
examrnati_on. That is what cross examinatron ls for

rt certainly does not rise to the lever of
material- that requires a mistriar. we wourd ask
that the Court not do that.

THE COURT: Before I go back to Mr. Strang,
dld I understand that the State indicated they gave

that to the defense, not onry the Michael osmunson

statement, but also information that Mr. Dassey

would testify as he did today? r thought that is
what I heard you start to say.

MR. KRATZ: No, he got it from __ He got
page 259, with all of the other discovery, incruding
Mr. Dassey's. f don,t know if the conversation is
incfuded in Mr. Dassey's report, but it was in Mr.

14
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Osmunson's on page 25g.

MR. STRANG: This page 25g is the only
notice I had of any discovery/ any conversation, of
:nrzl-h;^^ -rdtryLll-LIlg at all in any form. fndeed, I had asked
for any statements of Bobby Dassey. f see no
mentron of a Mike, or Michael, or Michael osmunson,
anywhere in the report itself, that concerns what
Bobby Dassey had to say. So, there, f wrll telf you
this caught me completely unaware.

THE COURT: Mr. KraLz, I guess I am not
sure, what was the State expecting, that Mr. Dassey
was going to testify to a different date today, to
the tenth, rather than the third?

MR. KRATZ: I don,t understand the questton/
Judge' rt was the third. This witness testrfied
that this conversation with Mike, because steven was
not in custody then, this wttness testified it was
on the third.

THE COURT: Right. But

understanding, from what I have

folks have the benefit of that
t.he report, that is the report
that indicated the conversation
tenth.

it's my

been told, and you

here, I have not seen

from Mr. Osmunson,

took place on the

MR. KRATZ: We will probably have to get

15
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page 259 . r don't have that in here. perhaps r can
make a better record about that. perhaps the court
can read all of page 259.

MR. STRANG: Mr. Buting, I think, can go

across the hall to the Clerk's office, and get
copies of page 259 for everyone, including the
Court, and counsel for the State.

THE COURT: AII right. We will take our
break. Somebody can have the document brought back
to my chambers. f wilt take a look at it.

MR. KRATZ : That ' s fine. Thank you.
(After a short recess/ the followrng

proceedings took prace in the courtroom, outsrde of
the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: you may be seated. Is there
anything further from either party concerning the
defense motion?

MR. STRANG: I have one

Honor. This is because this is
to get it right. I did not say

checked on the break.

thing to add, your

serious, and f want

this untif I double-

But the further reason that I was not
concerned, and set aside the possibifity of the
Osmunson statement, or the oral statement of the
defendant, through Osmunson coming in, is that the

16
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State does not list Michael Osmunson on their
witness l_ist. Neither did the defense. His name,

nowhere, appears on either party,s witness list, and
what we have here then, oo reviewing this, is a

materiafly different statement, made at an entrrery
different time, and impossible to have been made on
the day that Mr. Osmunson says it was made that day.

So, it's not entirely consi-stent, in the
sense that he expresses no uncertainty about it
having been November tenth, Thursday, and says that
is because he had learned of Teresa Halbach being
missing on the preceding Tuesday, which only could
mean not earlier than Tuesclay, November eighthr ds

the Court notes. On that record, f can stand.
THE COURT: Mr. Kratz?

MR. KRATZ : Thank you, Judge . F.irst of all,
the Court needs to note there was no violation, dt
feast a statutory discovery violation. The fact
that Mr. Strang indicates the impossibility of
November tenth, '05, as being the date of this
conversation, actually plays in the State,s favor,
and does beg the question: Why the defense is
claiming surprise?

Why didn't they do someth

statement? The defense had this
ing with this
information

11



1

2

3

A

5

o

7

8

i0

11

12

IJ

I4

lf

16

11

18

1q

20

21

22

a)

.A

25

availabfe to them. If the context, and the subject
matter, and if the dates are wrong/ there are many

remedies avaifable to the defense. They could have
rnterviewed osmunson, and apparently have chosen not
to. They certainly have had access to Bobby Dassey,
and the entire Dassey family, and f don,t know if
Mr. Strang has indicated, or is representing that
they did not interview Bobby Dassey, but that, f
think, should be part of the record, ds wefl.

Secondly, and next., it's important to note,
the jury is not going to be misled at arl in this
case. A mistrial is reservedr 3s this court knows,

rn serious cases of prosecutorial misconduct, or
breach, or when some other remedy is not gorng to be

available. Given the fact there is no vioration, r-ro

discovery violation, certainly a mistriar is not at
alf appropriate.

Let me offer, if there are concerns that t.he

Court stilf has, if the Court believes thatr on

cross-examinatio', cannot be dealt with, Mr. Strang
stirl has available to him, either: To interview
Mr. Dassey, if the Court wants to grant a brief
continuance. Or to have Mr. Dassey come back, to
shore this up. Or interview Mr. Osmunson. Or to
secure Mr. Osmunson's appearance.
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But the notice of the conversation was
provided. The fact that defense did nothing with
at, the fact that defense failed to interview, or
faifed to appreciate, even if every befief was that
:_t was in a joking manner, the poor joke, that the
off-color remark that Mr. Avery apparently made,

regarding the remains of Ms. Halbach, r think that
is something perhaps that the defense should have
done. But it's not something the Court should
attribute to the State. Nor should a mistrial be
the remedy that the court chooses in this case.
That is alf I have, Judge. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Strang?

MR. STRANG: First, w€ have not rntervrewed
Bobby Dassey. Second, the report, whi-ch the Court
now has a copy of, and f ask to be made part of the
court record as a Court Exhibit, again, is that he,
Michael_, and Bobby were inside the Dassey garage,

but, from that point forward, describes this as a

conversation between Michael and Steven.

So, the remedy here is not to repeat this
statement/ again and again in front of the jury r or
call- another witness to change the date. The remedy

here is a mistriar, or something that effectivery
would erase this testimony from the ;ury,s

19



I

2

3

A

o

7

8

o

10

11

12

13

1/IT

lf

16

1',7

18

10

20

2l

22

z)

.,t A

25

consideration, because, again, it,s a materially
different statement, under different circumstances,
on a different. date. That has an all_together
different meaning, and it becomes something a kirler
woufd have done, ds we sit here.

As the statement was presented to us, rt was

-r-mpossibre to have been made. rt was false on its
face. So, if there were a remedy, short of a

mistrial, and I don't think that there is. But if
there were a remedy, short of that, it would be

something like the court instructing the members of
the jury that testimony was given concerning a

statement that Mr. Avery supposedly made to Bobby

and Mike, his fr.iend, on November 3, and that the
statement was not made, the testimony was false.

It was not made, and the testimony about it
was false, and at that point, the Court, f think, if
:-r were gorng to adopt a remedy, short of a

mistrial-, would roll into it, with that instruction,
and connect it with the Fafsus in uno rnstruction,
about Bobby Dassey's testimony, inviting, but not
instructing the jury that it. may disregard, as

false, dll of Bobby Dassey's testimony because of
his false testimony on this point.

f don't know if that would suffice, but

BO
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that comes much closer to a remedy than repeating
lt, and/ you know, remaking the statement over and

over/ agarnr orr cross examination r or with another
wrtness, in front of the jury.

f don't have case law at hand, on whether
the page 259 of the Calumet County Sheriff,s
Department report, technically, suffices under
Section 9jL.23 (1) (b) or not. f 'm assuming here, for
the sake of argument, because we are told that Bobby

rs somewhere in the garage when the statemenr
purportedly is made, I'm assuming, for the sake of
argument, that the State is just on the right side
of the fine on discovery.

But, f have also laid ouL the practical
problems, and a good argument could be made, and I
wifl make it, if there is case law to support rt, a

good argument can be made that the statement
testified to here is so materiarly different in
date, time, and content, than the statement of which
we were given notice, that they are not the same

oral statement. But, in any event, I don't think
the court has to resolve that. The damages and the
problems are clear, and are serious.

THE COURT: All right. The startrng
here is the discovery statute, Section 91I.23

^^i-+yv!1rL

(1) (b)

B1
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That statute requires that the prosecution provide
to the defense a written summary of alt oral
sratements of the defendant. That would be

statements of Mr. Avery, which the District Attorney
plans to use in the course of the tgial, and the
names of witnesses, who the defendant made the oral
statements to.

rn this case, the court is satisfied that,
at least, literally, that statute has been complied
with, that the disputed testimony involves a

statement attributed to the defendant, and there is
no dispute that the discovery information provrded
by the state to the defense incruded information
indicating that both Mr. Osmunson and Bobby Dassey

were present at the time the defendant made the
statement.

what is different is the date on which the
statement was made, and as noted by defense counsel
in his argument, that can have a significant.
difference here, because it can affect the
credibil_ity of the statements themselves.

I would note at the outset that, in terms of
assessing the problems presented to the defense
here, both from page 259 which was presented to the
Court, and based on the testimony of Mr. Dassey,
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both of the witnesses to the defendant's statement
indicated that they thought he was just joking at
the time. That is another element in which the
information provided to the defense and the
testimony given today on the wrtness stand are
consistent with each other.

I do agree that I would not fault the
defense, saying they didn't take the opportunity to
simply follow up on the information on page 2Sg,

because by reading paqe 259, they woul_d have been

led to believe that the informatron contarned could
have been easily attacked, or the basis the
defendant could not have made that statement on

November tenth.

But they did have information
statement was made. It's not unusual

to be mistaken about dates.

to

for

suggest the

a witness

In the Court's opinion, I think that the
defense is entitled to some consideration in the
form of having an adequate opportunity to prepare to
cross examine the witness about the statement that
was made today.

I don't believe, first of all, there was,

strictly speaking, a violation. And, secondly,
grven the nature of the testimony, that the

B3
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sratement was made in jest, it would not
leveI of something that would warrant the
of a mistrial.

rise to the

grant lng

The Court would be inclined to grant the
defense an opportunity, first of all, to cross
examlne the witness, in an attempt to attack the
statement today, 1f the defense wishes. The court
will also require the state to make the watness

avaifable for the defense to consur-t at a later
date, if the defense feefs it needs additional time
in whlch to prepare to cross examine the witness on

this issue.

The Court may also consider giving an

rnstruction to the jury at some rater point, Lf it
is deemed to be warranted. But T think rt,s
premature at this stage to speculate as to whether
or not such an instruction may be required, or what

the content of such an instructions might be.

So, f am giving the defense an alternative
opportunity- You are free to cross examine the
witness today. you are free to also, if you cross
examine him today, to have him brought back at a

fater date, after you have had more time to diqest
the testimony today. you can also postpone your

cross examination of the witness, if you wish.
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MR. STRANG: I understand the
rulings. Those are three choices that
complicated weighing for us to do. I
first step, what f would like to do is
minutes r or something, to talk with Mr
fh-+LltA L .

/anrrrf | -vvu! L J

present

guess /

have 30

. Buting

some

asa

about

And I would like at this point the Court to,
untir Mr' Dassey has completed whatever testrmony he
ls going to give in this case, r woufd rike the
court to order that the State, and any agent of the
State, including members of the Calumet County
Sheriff's Department, or either of the two lead
rnvestigators r or anyone acting on their behalf,
not discuss with Bobby Dassey any aspect of his
testimony, have no contact with him about hrs
testimony actually given alreadyr or anticipated
furtherr orr direct or cross examrnation.

So, in other words, I would l-ike him

sequestered. That agents of the state wourd include
the District Attorney's office/ anyone involved on

the prosecution's side of the case, or actrng at the
prosecution's direction, and r also will not talk to
Mr. Dassey either, without approaching the Court,
and terling the court and counser that we rntend, or
we are asking to be able to interview him, whire his
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testimony is ongoing, in the sense that he has not
been refeased from his appearance here.

But I wculd llke to, at a minimum, to
"freeze the frame", so to speak, where it tS, and to
start with, like r said, r think 30 minutes for Mr.
Buting and I to talk about which, of the three
optrons the Court has afforded us immediately, we

best should choose in representing Steven Avery.
THE COURT: Mr. KraLz?

MR. KRATZ: I do have a suggestion, Judge.
My direct examination of Bobbyr ds the Court may

have already predicted, wilr be concluded with Bobby

identifying the balance of the photos that are in
front of him- r don't intend to ask him any other
questions. That seems to be seamless enough that it
woul-d allow Mr- Strang an opportunity over the lunch
hour.

perhaps the Court could even grant a

fittre extension over the lunch hour for the defense
to discuss their strategyr So the jury could at
feast hear the rest of the direct test.imony, which
is just the identification of the other photographs

and exhibits- r thlnk that would be fair for Mr.

Strang, to give him an opportunity to discuss that.
MR. STRANG: Well, if it's reaflv iust
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finishing identifying the photographs, and there is
no sunmary or windup ai the end, then that is a

reasonabre suggestion. r think we could, Lf r Coufd
qet 90 mlnutes for lunch today, Mr. Buting and I
could incorporate the discussion, f'm suggestrng we

need to have, over the lunch hour. So, I don,t have

any quarrel, if f understand Bobby Dassey really
does end on direct examination, when the last
photograph is identified and explained.

MR. KRATZ: Counsel has just reminded me,

Judge, that Lf, during the course of Bobby's

identification of some photographs, he says

something, I may ask a clarifying question. That

may raise some areas of inquiry.

So, although my intent is to ask about these
photographs, and what is depicted in them, it's
possible that it could go into other areas of
information, on the property and the like. But I
don't envision, certainry don't envision revisiting
this "statement issue". But f was just tryrng to
come up with a suggestion that could at least
complete the direct examination before lunch.

MR. STRANG: perhaps it would be useful to
know/ your Honor, how many photographs we have left
to go, and about what time the prosecution expects

B1
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its continued direct examination wilf consume.

THE COURT: Mr. Kratz?

MR. KRATZ: I think we have 20 pictures
left, Judqe. f think the questions will be what you
heard so far, is what we are looking at.

THE COURT: Why don't we finish up on that
and take a lunch break at that point?

MR. STRANG: And I do I think f would like a

ruling about I know f would like a ruling on my

request that Mr. Dassey, at this point, until a

further order of the Court, not be questioned in any
way by any agent of the State.

He wilr have to have some incidental contact
with Julie Leverenz, who is the victim-wrtness
coordinator from the calumet county District
Attorney's Office. I odn't have any practical
objection to that, "when does he need to back?", or
whatever.

THE COURT: Any objection from the State?

MR. KRATZ: No.

THE couRT: Arr riqht. The court wir-t order
that no attorney or .representative of either side
have any contact with Mr. Dassey until his testimony
r-s completed. And the victim-witness coordinator is
not to discuss any aspect of his testimony with him.
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With that, I believe we can bring the jury back
in and complete the direct examination of Mr.

Das sey.

MR. KRATZ: The record should refrect that l
have instructed the Victim-witness coordinator as to
what to do.

THtr COURT: Thank you.

(The jury was brought back to the courtroom,
and the following proceedings contrnued in the
courtroom/ in the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: you may be seated.

Mr. KraLz, ar this rtme you may resume your
direct examination.

MR. KRAT'Z : Thank you.

BY MR. KRATZ:

Bobby, we left off on Exhibit Number 56, that was

in front of you. r think you started to terl us

what Exhibit 56 was. Can you tell us again
please ?

That ls my Grandma's house.

Now that the jury can see exhibit 56, where is
your Grandma's house located in relationship to
you ?

To the east.

Okay. We will- see an overview, or at least the
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;ury has. But how far down that road is your
Grandma's trailer located? Do you know?

A Maybe six tenth's of a mile.

O And then they have a road r or more of a ,,long

driveway"; is that correct?
A Yes, it is a long driveway.

o The next exhibit is Number 5i. can you tetr us

what that is please?

A It's another picture of my Grandma's house.

O From a different angle?

A Yes.

O And, again, now that the jury can see Exhibit
number 5j, how are we looking at her trailer?

A That would be, if you are coming into the driveway,
that woufd be the east side of it, the northeast
side of it.

O So, if you are coming from the main road, on

Highway I4l, you are coming toward the end of it?
A Yes. That would be the front.

O What is the next exhibit, Exhibit 58?

A That is the office area, inside the shop, of the
salvage yard.

O Now, as I get that picture up, if I can, in fact,
do that, you are talking about the shop?

A where they do all of their business. where they fix
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the cars.

On the Avery Salvage property, this is other than
;ust residences; is that correct?

Yes.

Do you know how many other buildings there are,
other than residences?

Th reo

Exhibit Number 58, is that one of them?

The main office area, Lf somebody did buslness
with the salvage place, he would come into this
room here?

All right. Tefl us what Exhibit 59 is?
Just another picture of the plymouth Voyager van.
Now, Exhibit 59, where was that taken from? Do

you know?

From the driveway.

Do you still have the faser pointer up there?
tcJ.

Can you show us with the laser pointer where your
mother's and your home would be located in
relationship to 1_his picture?

It woufd on this side of the picture.
The left side?

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O
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A Yes.

O And that is the maroon van/ agaan, the van that
you saw Teresa taking pictures of?

A YOC

MR. STRANG: Objection, dsked and answered.
The testimony is getting cumulative, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Kratz?

MR. KRATZ: Judge, although I understand I
have asked the questions, these are arl ciifferent
angles. They will have a use later in the trral. I
suspect, with this picture, that is
self-explanatory.

THE COURT: I witl allow the one question,
to put the piccure rn context.

BY MR. KRATZ:

o That was the vehicle that reresa \^/as taking a

picture of?

A Yes.

o All right.. The next exhibit is Exhibit Number 6()?

A Thai is another picture of the vanf ;ust a different
angle.

o what we are showing on the screen is Exhibit 60?

MR. STRANG: Objection, cumulative and a

waste of time, under Section 904.03.

THE COURT: Are you referring to the
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description of the photo, or the photo itself?
MR. STRANG: The phot.o and the description

of it.

THE COURT: It's my understanding at this
time we are going through these photos because they
may be used later. ft's a bit difficult for the
Court to sdy, in advance, that a photo may be a

waste of time, since I don't know the purpose for
which it may be used. So, I'm not going to rufe on

the objection for nol.

MR. KRATZ: All right.
BY MR. KRATZ:

O Exhibit 67?

A Another picture of the van at a different angre.

O What is in the background of Exhibit 6I?

A My mom's house.

o when looking at Exhibit 6r, could you again point
out the picture, orl excuse me/ the window that
you looked out and watched things from?

A It would be that window there.

O The left-most wj.ndow on the trailer; is that
correct ?

A Yes.

O Exhibit 62 is the front of What is that?
A That would be Steven's car.
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What kind of car is that?

Pontiac Grand Am.

You mentioned that. Steven

We saw that in a previous
aa\rro-f')

Yes.

had a truck, as well?

A

O

nrn1-rrrn. -i^ +L-!y!uuu!s, I> LlldL

This blue car/ that Grand Am, is, obviously, a

different vehicre. Did steven drive this car?

What is Exhibit 63?

That would be the yard's flatbed, the salvage yard
flatbed.

What is a flatbed, for those of us, who don,t
know?

For hauling cars , for picking up cars.

MR. STRANG: your Honor, I would like to be

heard briefly at side bar, if I may?

THE COURT: Very well.
(At which time a bench conference was held

off the record, in low tones, between the Court and

the attorneys, out. of the hearing of everyone else
in the courtroom. )

BY MR. KRATZ:

What is the next picture of, in front of you,

A

O

A

A
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Exhibir 64?

A The would be my Grandma's golf golf.
O Your Grandma's what?

A Goff cart.

O And, again, on the large screen, that is a

representatlon of the photo that is in front of
you?

A YAq

O Do you know where that gotf cart was normally
kept- ?

A In her garage.

O What is Exhibit G5?

A My mom's golf cart.
O Aqain, directing your attention to the large

screen, where was that normally kept?
A Mostly outside.

O Outside of what?

A Our house.

o The next photo is Exhibit 66. can you tell us

what that is?

A That would be the car crusher.

O Where on the property was that located? Do you

know?

A Down in the pit.

O What does "down in the pit" mean?
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the property?

Bobby, did you ever operate this piece
equrpment ?

No.

It would actually
the far side.

The east side of
fCJ.

Okay. I think he have this on

different angles, but can you

Exhibit 61 ?

be on the east side of fho ni Ierrv yr u/

of

A

O

A

O

a couple of

Lerl us aDout

A

O

A

O

A

0

A

O

Just the front view of Lhe crusher, again.
Actually, I am not even going to post. these to the

lury. Just telf me we what it is.
Just a front view of the crusher.

And 68?

A back view of the crusher.

And Exhibit 69?

A picture of the whole background.

Of the pit that you were talking about?

rcJ.

vAay.

A

O

I will show this one. Tell us what we are
looking at here.

There is the far east side of the property.
Can you show us, with the laser pointer, the
crusher please?
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The crusher is right there.

Is there a body of water r or a pond, right there?
Yes. That would be right around there.
Now, do you know whar is on the other side of that
pond?

Just an embankment.

Are there vehicles on the other side?

There is, a litt-le lower, and there is the
embankment.

Could you show us that, with your laser pointer,
what you are talking about?

There is the embankment, and there is the road that
runs on this sicle of the pond.

Okay. What is Exhibit 10?

Crushed cars.

Had you seen any crushed cars on the property?

No.

You were not involved in the business at all?
No.

What is the next picture, number jI?

A picture of trres.
And what are picture iI, the tiresr or where were

f horz I ar-:J_ od?

Just north of the crusher.

What is Exhibit 12?

O

A

O

A

0

A

O

A

O

A

O
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A

A pile of tires.
Do you know where those tires were

That is just southwest of Steven's

back corner.

Iocated?

t ra i 1er, rn the

O

A

O

Exhibit 13, what is that?

Just the Avery Salvage sign.
Where was that sign located, now that
seeing it on Exhibit j3?

At the end of Avery's Road.

What does Avery Road connect with?

the jury is

Highway I41.

So, this sign, that is on Exhibit J3, would be at
that intersection; is that correct?

Yes.

The next exhibit is Exhibit i 4. What is that?
Just an overview of the salvage yard.

Can you describe that any further?
Directly south from Steven's trailer.

MR. KRATZ: I think this will be the last
picture I witl show. There are some others up

there.

THE COURT: Alt right.
BY MR. KRATZ:

Exhibit f 4, what are you looking at?

This is maybe half of the salvage yard, with cars

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A
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property?

n tE>.

O And, in fact, what is Exhibit jS?

A More pictures of cars in the junk yard.

O And Exhibit 1 6?

A Just another pi_cture of an overview of the yard.

O And 11?

A The same thing, another picture of the overview.

O More junk cars?

n ac-.

O More junk cars? Finally, Exhibit jB, in front of
you?

A More junk cars.

MR. KRATZ: With that, Judge, I will move

admission of Exhibits 31 through JB, as identified
n\/ ivt r tt:Qqa\t

THE COURT: Mr. Strang?

MR. STRANG: Number 10, I think he said he

has never seen these crushed cars before. So, I
don't i-hink that we even got to the relevancy of
number 70. I think many of the others are

cumulative. But as a practical matter/ some of

that we can address later. f don't have any

questions about their authenticity.
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THE COURT: All right. The Court will
this time allow all of the exhibits in, except

Exhrbit J0, based upon laying a foundation.
THE COURT: Mr. Krafz, do you have any

further questions for this wrtness?

MR. KRATZ: No, not at this time, Judge.

THE COURT: ALI right. Members of the jury,
counsel and r have a few things to take up before we

contrnue. so, w€ are going to take a break at this
time, early for lunch, and resume at one o'clock.
Again, r will remind you not to discuss the case in
any fashion during the break.

-+AL

€nr

(The jury left the courtroom.

proceedings continued in the courtroom,

the presence of the :ury.)

The following

outside of

THE COURT: you may be seated. We are now

outside of the p,resence of the jury. Mr. Strang,

you requested a brief side bar during the witness'
testimony. Did you wish to put that on the record?

MR. BUTING: yes, I do. We had two

photographs identified and published to the lury.
These were, by my notes, numbers 22 and 63, in which

obvious police crime-scene evidence yerlow tape is
wrapped around, first, what was identified as Mr.

Avery's Grand Am, and, secondly, the witness
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identifled a flatbed Lruck. The implicatron of the
evi-dence tape, obviousry, is that Lhere is something
of evidentiary vafue, inculpatory presumably, since
the State is offering these, and it appears to be
police t.ape.

That is an unfair lmplication as to both the
Grand Am and the flatbed t-ruck. I cannor rmagine
what the probative value of the photographs of these
two vehicles is. fn any event, certainly the State
has photographs of the Grand Am, without evidence
tape r or other suggestions there is something to be
preserved, or something incriminating r oL
rnculpatory, about it.

So, f think those ought not come in, for
those reasons. That is a much longer version of
what r said at i-he side bar, but that was the issue
f was raising at- side bar, off the record, and I
will note that, although f am aware, under State
versus Miniero, M_I_N_I_E_R_O, and other cases, the
Appelrate courts of the state are not fond at alr of
off-the-record side bars, I,m the one who requested
the side bar, and I knew that it would be off the
record. So, I will try to make cfear, what I think
f said, and the side bar, then immediateiy, has to
be on the record, but f appreciate the Court giving
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me a chance now to elaborate much further on the
issue f raised in summary at srde bar.

THE COURT: All right. r will say the Court
t-s aware, we have been admonished by the Appeals
Courts to avoid side bars, whenever possibte, and
whenever one is held, to make a record of it. f try
the remember to do thatr ds best I can.

Mr. Krat-2, any response to the defense,s
concern about the two exhibits?

MR. KRATZ: Just briefly, Judge. Those
atems were, in factr dS soon as both of them were
rnspected, one of them, the blue pontiac was
processed, and the items therein tested by the
Wisconsin State Crime LaboraLory, and a DNA profile
was developed from within, the fact that Steven
Avery's b100d is near the console of that vehicle,
as wefl as in Ms. Halbach,s vehicle, the State
rntends to inclr-rde in evidence in this case.

Especially, if the defense intends to pursue
their "planl_i-ng of Mr. Avery,s blood,, evidence, and
the Court, f'm sure, oo its own, can surmise the
argument that the State may make, rf, in fact,
"planting evidence" is going to continue to be
advanced in thrs case.

The negative evidence, that is, the lack of

r02
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evidence in the flatbed, has slmilar evidentiary
value, drd whether the State intends to argue
directly the irnplication of negative evrdencer or
;ust the fact that the State rooked, the fact that
the State, in fact, did a thorough investrgation,
all has at feast some relevance in t.his case, and
the showing of these two photographs are not, rn and
of themselves, prejudicral.

They wil_L both be referred to fater in this
trraf' and at this time r think it,s proper for the
court to not rej ect or exclude those photographs as
exhibits. Thank you.

THE couRT: Arl right. r,m satisfied that,
at least at thls stage of the trial, both of the
photos offered have at least the potential for
probative value, for Lhe reasons stated. Among
other things, the thoroughness of the State,s
rnvestrgation can be put into play later in this

I do have

State have photos

the flatbed, that
rnvolved?

MR. KRATZ:

know that we have

one question,

of either the

doesn't have

however. Does the

Pontiac Grand Am or

evidence tape

f can check, Judge.

the flatbed. The Grand

f don't

Am, we may
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have photos at the crime rab, and that rs something
that r can cer:tainly inquire into. But these were
the first photcs. f don,t know that evidence tape,
in and of themselves, since the jury will hear they
were processed, is anything prejudiciar at all. But
I will check for the Court.

THE COURT: All right. Let,s have the
partres report back at one o,clock. Then the first
order of business witl be hearing from the defense?

MR. STRANG: yeah. I woufd like a little
more time than one o'clock. If f could get 90
minut.es, I thlnk that would be enougih.

THE COURT: All right. We witl give you
until 1:15.

MR. STR-ANG: Okay.

(After the noon recess/
proceedings resumed in the court
presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: you may be seated. At this time
we're back on the record, outside of the presence of
the ;ury' r will indicate for the record that r met
with counsel briefly in chambers before we began.
rt's my understanding, r believe that we have an
agreement on how we are going to proceed this
afternoon, and that involves, specifically, taking a

the following

room/ outside of the
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wttness out_ of order. fs that correct, counsel?
MR. KRATZ: The state understands, your

Honor' that the defense has asked for an opportunity
to defer its cross examination of Bobby Dassey until
the beginning of court tomorrow. We understand that
the State/ excuse me/ the defense, wishes an
opportunity to interview Mr. Dassey somerlme yet
this afternoon, and the State is prepared to call
Trooper Austin, and have him present his testimony
before the cross_examination begins, whichr dS I
understand, the defense has asked for l_eave to
commence that tomorrow morning.

THE COURT: Mr. Strang?

MR. STRANG: I had suggested in chambers
that our concrusion and the defense,s staLement was
that we did neerl t.o interview Bobby Dassey before
cross examining him, and that we wish to cross
examl-ne him only once, So as not to draw undue
attention to him, or to any part of his tesrrmony.
Because that is an interview that is of
unpredictable rength, and will take us in different
possible directi-ons, some of which r can predict as
possrbilities, and |m not sure r can predict alr of
the possibilities, I had asked that we have the
bafance of the day to do that, and that we start
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tomorrow morning with the cross examination of Bobby
Dassey, so that, for the jury, this just flows
sequentially, and, you know, the fact that the Court
had to resolve some issues as all the jury would
know.

fn chambers, as f understood the Court, iL
was unwirring to ad;ourn for the afternoon and start
up agarn Lomorrow morning. I object to taking
another witness, out of order, because I expect
thatr ds r understand this trial, then Bobby Dassey
will be the only witness, whose cross examination
did not immediately follow in order with his direct
examination- That is, it was broken up by another
witness.

The Cou_rt, of course, contro]s the mode and
the order of the interrogation of witnesses. But
this does tend t-o highlight him, and also it feaves
us attendlng to Trooper Austin, which that_ trme
probably woufd be better used and should be used in
rnterviewing Bobby Dassey, and adjusting the cross
exam:-nation of Bobby Dassey.

Accordingly, doing a one_and_a_hal-f, or
one-hour witness, is better than having no time to
interview Bobby Dassey at all, to be sure. But I
don't think this is an adequare remedy, and as I
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forecasted 1n chambers, and won,t repeat here, there
are a number of possibre issues that we may need to
visit or revisit, depending on the results of the
conversation with Bobby Dassey.

But, in any event, I do ask the Court then
to exempt us, or to carve an exception for Mr.
Buting, and myself, and our defense investigator,
this afternoon, so l-hat we can talk to Bobby Dassey
here, during the midst of his testimony, so to
speak.

But we woufd ask that the Court,s earlier
order remain in place, for ag,ents of the State,
other than Ms. Leverenz, who, of courser ds a
practacal matter, has to have some communtcatton
with Bobby Dassey about the Court,s schedule and
plans.

THE COURT: Mr. Krarz?

MR. KRATIZ: Thank you, Judge. As the CourL
know, in chamber.s it was the State,s request that
the defense proceed directry with cross examination.
r wiff have an exhibi. marked for the court, which r
alerted the Court, and reminded counsel that they
already had in their possessl.nr paQes 516 and 517
of the Sheriff's Department discovery, which is now
a second place within the materiaf that Mr. Strang
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already had, which arerted the defense counsel to
the substance of, and the surrounding circumstances
of the interview that Mr. Dassey mentioned in his
direct testimor-ry.

To suggest to this Court, dt this time, that
rt was not until this very moment that the defense
realized the significance of Bobby Dassey, when they
have known for well over a year that Bobby Dassey
was the last person, oLher than their c-Lient, to see
Ms. Halbach a1ive, and walking toward Mr. Avery,s
traifer, to suggest it's only now that they believe
it important to interview Mr. Dassey, the State
believes to be rCisingenuous.

That not withstanding, your Honorr we
understand why the defense has made this request.
we do disagree that, after Mr. strang and Mr. Buting
have an opportunity to interview Mr. Dassey, that
the state should somehow be prohlbit.ed or precluded
from, ourselves, interviewing or speaking with Mr.
f\-^^^._-o>-ey. lnat tS a Separate iSSUe, Of Course.

And with that exhibit now having been
provided to the courtr we don't berieve that we have
any further need to make any furl-her record on this
issue. Thank you, Judge.

MR. STRANG: I acknowledge that I have had
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rn my possession paqes 516 and 517 of the Calumet
County Sheriff's Department report. ft,s not well
over a year, of course, because Mr. Butrng and I
have first entered our appearances l_ess than a year
ago in this case. But we have had those, that
report, and those two pages, for months, and, in any

!-evenc/ -L wish t-hat the question of the interviewing
of Bobby Dassey were as easy as whether he is
rmportant or not.

That is not the question. There are a whofe
fot of other dynamics at work here, such as the
availability of witnesses, and the afrocatron of
resources' and some of those things- Ide don,t need
to rehash alf of the arguments about why the defense
had wanted a tr-Lal date later than February 5, 2001.
But it's not alr that easy.

f can Sdy, and should sdy, that we have not
interviewed Bobiry Dassey at any time, and we hope to
be able to do that today. And the issue, rn the
end, f think under Section glI.23(1) (b) comes down
to the meaning of "witness,,, and whether here we
were provrded notice by the State that Bobby Dassey
wilf be a wi.ness to testify to the orar statement
at issue, materially different as it is from Mr.
osmunson's rendition, and some differences from the
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second_hand rendition from another witness, in pages
516 and 57r ' in just recounting to a law enforcement
agent what Bobby Dassey supposedly said to him,
about what Steven Avery said, in Bobby Dassey,s
presence.

So, f think we have got a record. I have
made, and I will renew the mistrial motion, and the
request for lesser relief, with the reast-favored
alternative being given the afternoon here to attend
just to Bobby Dassey, and resuming the trial with
the jury tomorrow morning, with Bobby Dassey,s
cross-examination.

f understand the Court has ruled on that.
lust wanted to make our position clear.

THE COURT: AII right. First of alf, the
Court has alreaciy denied the motion for a mrstr:_al,
and I have hearcj nothing to make me change that.
Since the matter was brought up on the record this
morning' the State has presented the court wrth
another piece of discoveryf which makes reference a
llttre more directly to the statement that was the
subject of the defense motion here.

Given the fact, never the less, that the
witness himself, in his own statements, apparently,
did not make reference to the information contarned
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rn the other two documents, that highlrghted the
witness' exposure to this alleged statement on the
part of the defendant, f agree that the defendant
should be permitted some trme to expl0re this issue
and to interview the witness.

f have not been presented a reason why
such an interview should regulre hours of
preparation, since t_he defense has had the
opportunity to interview this witness for as 10ng as
this case has been pending. There is only one
narrow lssue, specifically, the witness, testimony
as to one statement on the part of the defendant,
that gives rise to the need for another rnLerview.

f'm confident, if we break a little earlier
today, and the rlefense has an opport-unity to
lnrervrew the witness, that shoufd be sufficient to
address any problem that may exrst.

r do agree, under the circumstances, that
the defense should have the right to intervrew Mr.
Dassey first. But, under the circumstances/ I see
no reason to prohibit any representati_ve of the
State from interviewing Mr. Dassey later.

Again, for those reasons that have been
stated earlier, we are tatking about one fairly
narrow statement here, that is referenced in at
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l-east two different
admittedly provided

remedy the Court has

address this issue.

spots in the discovery that was

Lo the defense. J think the
ordered should be sufficienc ro

Llkewise, I don,t befieve The Court will
simply inform the jury, for the convenience of the
partres and the witnesses, we are going to hear from
Officer Austin, and the cross examination of Mr.
Dassey will be completed tomorrow morning. That
happens on a fairly routine basis in many trrals for
a variety of reasons, and the Court has never known
that' to be something that is likery to influence the
lury in any way.

So, at this time we wil_l bring the lurors
back in. Then, Mr KraLz, you can call your
watness.

MR. KRATZ:

THE COURT:

pages 51G and 51j?

Thank you

What was the exhibit number of

mTr-iHE CLERK: Exhibit 89.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STRANG: Don,t we have another rssue?
THE COURT: There is another issue that I

will take up tomorrow morning. f don,t believe it
was required to be taken up now.
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MR. STRANG: Okay.

MR. KRATZ: Judge, regarding Mr. Austin, I
told the co'rt that Mr. Austin intends to exprain
his process through a power point demonstration,
which, after we I re concluded, I will_ mark and make
part of the record. J do have a hard copy for the
Court to follow along. f have provided Mr. Buting
and Mr. Strang wlth a copy, as wellr so they can
follow along.

And, finally, as I alerted the Court, later
in this trial/ some of these computer images may be,
ln fact, referred to in a smal-I sub_set of these
rmages ' r arso have some four-by-six images made to
complete the rer:ord. J will provide those and have
those marked, as well, to be identified by t.his
witness, at the conclusion of his testimony.

Dr'# TtluL _L wrll give the Court and the Clerk the
exhibits here, and the Court can follow along with
the power point demonstration, as well.

We are prepared to proceed then.
THE COURT: Very well.
(At which time the jury came into the

courtroom. The following proceeding contrnued in
t.he courtroom, in the presence of the :ury. )

THE COURT: you may be seated. Members of
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the jury, for reasons relating to avallability of
wrtnesses, we are going to take a witness out of
order at this time. The defense will be conducting
rts cross examination of Mr. Dassey tomorrow
mornlnq/ and the State is going to ca_Il another
witness at this time.

O

A

O

TfMOTHY AUSTfN, being first duly
oath to tefl the truth, the whole truth,
but the truth, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: State your futl name

Mr. Kratz?

MR. KRATZ:

at this time.

The Technical Reconstruction

unit, if you will, of persons

We will caff Trooper Tim Austin

sworn on

and no1_hing

and spell
your last name please.

THE WIT\IESS: My name as Timothy Austin,
A-I1-q-rn-r-\Tr ! L\ .

DTRECT F]XAMINATION BY MR. KRATZ:

Mr. Austin, how are you employed?

r am employed as a trooper with the wisconsin state
Patrol' r'm assigned to the wisconsin state patrof
Academy, to the Technical Reconstruction unit.
can you terr us what the Technicaf Reconstruction
Unit is?

A Unit is a specia

that work with

1i zed

nr- ^ l^
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reconstructions and crime scene reconstructions for
the Division of the State paLrol.
Could you briefly set forth your education,
tralning, and experience in the areas of scene
modeling?

Yes, sir. f have been trained and certified as an
rnstructor in the fietd of forensic diagrammrng,
which includes the use of computer-aided drafting or
drawing sofcware, and a Geodimeter, which is,
basically, an electronic surveying device for
collecting measurements .

Now, Trooper Austin, we will be referring ro
larqe screen here in the courtroom. This is
is known as a ,'power point presentation,,, or
presentatlon software. Could you, first of a
-ra-l !^l lJusr re-Ll the jury what we wifl be lookrng at
during your testimony, and how this was created?
Yes. To assrst with my testtmony/ under the
direction of Mr . Kratz, I created a power point
presentation. what you will see is a series of
slides that will hetp to bring us through the
forensic mapping project that I did in this
particular case. you wilt see some images rn two
dimensions, dnd some three_dimensional computer
scenes that f generated.
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All right. What is forensic mapping?
Forensic mapping is the science, if you will , of
coflecting measurement.s at a crash or crime scene/
and then putting them together later, in either a
two-dimensional diagram or three-dimensionaf models.
Such was my objective in this particular case, to
collect measurements at the grven property, and
later to bring those measurements into the office to
create two-dimensional diagrams and some

three-dimensional models.

Speclficarly' Trooper Austinr orr November fifth of
2005/ were you asked 1-o proceed to, and drd you,
]n fact/ proceed to a property known as the Avery
Salvage yard?

Yes. On November fifth of ZOA5, I was requested by
ruud-L _Law entorr:ement to go to the Avery property in
Mani_towoc County for t_he purpose of forensrc
mapping.

How long were ycu at that property?
The forensic maprping activities went from November
fifth through November twetfth of that year.
You mentioned, I think, earlier that this forensic
mapplng process requires the taking of
measurements. Can you describe that process/ and
how many measurements were tnvolved?
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A Yes. As f said before, we utilized an electronic
measurlng device, in addition to recordrng some
measurements by hand, with tape measures, rf you
wirl ' But the bulk of the measurements were taken
using an e-Lectronic device known as the Geodimeter,
G-E-O-D-I-M-E-T-E-R, or the total station. In
totalr we documented over 4100 measurements at the
Avery property.

Tell us about the "total station,, process please?
certainly' The total stationr ds r sald before, is
an electronic d.evice composed of an elecrronrc
distance measuring system, which essentially
measures distance, distance from the total station
to a given evidentiary point. It also has a

theodolite, which measures angles. It also has a

data collector and a prism.
Just for the record, and for the reporter,s
benefiL, a hard copy of this will be provided for
the spellings of everything you said. This is
a picture of the Geodimeter,. is that correct?

And i-hose other devices that are used to create
these measuremenLs are included within the totaf
station package itself; is that correct?

Yes , that 1s correct . Hence , the name, ,,tot.al
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station". It measdres not ;ust
transit wou1d, it a_l_so measures

is because we have a Theodolite
measur:.ng system in there. We

or, hence, a "totaf station,,.

angles. Like a

distance, and that
and a distance

O

have a total_ package,

f'm sure Mr. platkowski would like you to slow
down just a littte more. That would be terrific.
Can you tell us about the information storage and
rat ri at.- l a4UE!TEVGI J

/-n-f-.i*r-uerrarnly. Again, what the total station does is
measures the distance and angles to a particular
location. For example , Lf I were measuring an item
of evidentiary value where Mr. Kratz is, I would ask
him to hold rhe prism over that item of evidentiary
-. - 't . -vdrue' '''ne totar station would recognize the angle
to Mr. Kratz, both horizontafly and vertically. It
woufd then measure the distance. What it will
document is that particurar point's rocatron in 3-D
space. fn other words, along an X_axis, a y_axis,
and a Z-axis, based on where the total statron is
located. ff there is another point on the other
side of the courtroom, it would do the same thing,
distance and angle to that partrcular pornt. It
stores that data in an on_board data collector,
which you see in the lower pictures.
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fs that basically
Yes, it is, and it
vertrcal angles to
l-ater retrieval.

a computer?

does convert these horizontal and
X, Y, and Z coordinates, for

A11 right. Let's tark about the total station,s
accuracy. Can you tell tire lury: Just how
accurate is this process?

This particurar totar station has a maximum angular
error or induced error from instruments of three
seconds. So, what that meansr dS I said before, i_t
measures in angres. rf r take a circle, that circle
is divided into 3GO degrees. Each degree is divided
rnto 50 minutes. Each minute is divided into 60

seconds' so, this particular instrument is accurate
to wi1-hin three of those seconds.

Mr. Krat-2, at this particular scene, the
longest shot disLance was about 1200 feet. If I
cafculate it out mathematically, that means our
maximum error induced by the instrument is less than
a half 1nch.

All right. Let's talk about the location, the
Avery salvage property itself. I have put your
next slide on the screen, and feel free to use
the l_aser pointerr or whatever you may need, to
explain or describe for this lury please the
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mapping locations?

fn this slide I put an aerial_ photograph of the
Avery property. The purpose of this was to show

that we had actually forensically mapped out this
entire focation. That is, everything that you see

here on the screen was mapped out, using that
Geodimeter total station.

This second slide, Mr. Kratz, shows us a

different view, another aerial photograph of the
same property. This time we have changed it, so

north is to the left side of the screen, and in the
box is where it shows the Avery salvage property.
That map was created, and I put this slide up

because, in addition to mapping the Avery salvage
propertyr we also completed some forensic mapprng at
what is best described as the "deer camp,,.

I was not privy as to who owns the deer
camp. f know it's an unrelated person. We did
forensic mapping at this locaclon too, and also a

cuf-de-sac at the end of Kuss Road. The areas we

mapped were somewhat considerabre in terms of
geographic location, if you will.
Are you familiar with a term called "cAD" drawing?

Yoq qi r

From a two-dimensional stand point, describe that

L20
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for the jury please?

What Mr. Kratz LS referring to as ,,CAD,,, is
"computer-aided drawing". rn addition, we are doing
alf of our diagraming on the computer, and we refer
to two-drmensionaf drawings. What that ts is an
orthogonar view, meaning looking from the top
straight down. That is how most of the Avery
property was diagramed, so that. when you look at the
computer drawing, it's essentially as if you were
way above ihat scene, looking straight down at it.

What that allows you to do is take specific
locations and "zoom in on it,,, if you will, to look
at those locations in detail.
Let's look at some of the 1_wo_dimensional

drawings. What are we looking at now?

tvlR. KRAI| Z : By the way, Judge, I will, ds
we go through this, f will refer to the hard copy.
This will be the bottom of page J, ;ust so the
record i-s clear, dS this witness testifies.

BY MR. KRATZ:

Go ahead, Mr. Austin.
what we are looking at here is that. two-dimensionar
CAD drawi-ng that was created, showing the Avery
property that we saw in the aerial photographs, and,
again, we have the ability to zoom in on specific

O

A
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areas, if we wanted to see

different location in that
property.

the details of a

entire over-al] salvage

Were you able, with your total station measuring,
are you able to tell the jury the perimeter, if
you will, in distances?

Yes. Not directly with the total station, Mr.
Kratz. However/ once we bring it into the computer
environment, we can take measurements to be abfe to
determine the extent of that. fn this case here, I
want to say the "rough measurements,,, because the
property is not perfectly square. But north and
south, Lhe measurement is approximately 1260 feet,
and east and west, the measurement is approximately
-Lruu reet. That. comes out to be just under 40
A r- ra q

A11 right. Let's talk about some of the
two-dimensionaf views that you created then. This
]mage, again, which would be on the bottom of page
B, is the entire Avery property; rs that correct?

Yes, sir. And I will put this image back in here
agatn to show you that we,re going to zoom in, if
you will, on certain sections on those
two-dimensionar diagrams. So, with this portion of
that drawingr w€ are now gorng to look at the
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two-dimensional- drawing, which shows the
northeastern corner of the property. fn that
northeastern corner of the property are the business
buildings, if you will , for the Avery Salvage yard.

Whai we are looking at here, sir, there are
blue-colored buildings down here, is the marn
business or main shop. There are also some other
storage locations. This wourd be private residences
focated here.

were you also asked to do a two-dimensional view
of where Theresa Halbach's vehicfe was rocated?
Yes. The scene we were just dt, was at the
northeastern corner. We are now going to go down,
where you see a yellow box, to the southeastern
corner of the pr:operty. The very first nrght of
forensic mappinq, the RAV_4 was there. Therefore,
we did, forensically, map its location, and a

two-dimensional diagram was generated, and we can
zoom in on that area on the two-dimensionaf diagram,
to see that location.

Then on the top of page 11 now, the screen that
the jury is viewing, why don't you terl us what we

are looking at?

What we are looking at here are details of that
southeastern corner of the property, and what we see

A
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here is the RAV_4, that Mr. Kratz has asked me

about, positioned here. Now, we did, actuar-ly,
usrng the totaf station, 10cate pieces of wood or
other debris that was leaning up against or on top
of the vehicle. That is why you see, in thls
two-dimensional drawing, there are some ttems on
that view of the car.
were you asked to determine the focatlon and 1,he

distance between the RAV_4 and a fixed object
which is known as a "car crusher,,?
Yes. To assist with that, f will put the aerial
photo back or, to, again, show that. The RAV_4 was
located down there in this location, and the vehicfe
crusher is located where you now see the yellow
square. If you look at the CAD drawing of this, we

can see where the vehicre crusher 1s rerated to the
position of the RAV-4. Now, if f take a direct, ,,as

the crow flies", measurement, if you will, from the
RAV-4 straight across, and there is a pond area
here' but straight across to the vehicr-e crusher is
about 380 feet away.

Again, for the jury, when you say about 380 feet
away/ you can actually tel] them within a half
inch how far away that is, can,t you?

If you were to ask me, Mr. KraLz, specific
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locations, say this spot on the RAV_4 to this spot
on the crusher, we could get very accurate. J
rounded thls off to .he nearest foot, just because

'm 
taking an approximate position on the RAV-4 to

an arbitrary position on the vehicle crusher.
Were you al so asked to do two_dimensionaf views of
the area closer to Steven Avery,s resldence
'i fselfr

Yes, sir. Mr. Kratz, if we move from the vehicle
crusher here to the northwestern area of the sarvage
yard, there are two private residences in that area,
one belonging to Mr. Avery, and we can/ againr oo
the two-dimensional dravrings I zoom in, if you will,
on this location to view a scaled scenic
representation of that area.
On the top of page 14 then rs our first
two-dimensional view. Why don,t you show us what
you are looking at?

Again, the northwestern portion of that property,
what we are seeing here is a private residence.
This would be Mr. Avery's residence. There rs a
garage next to it, and a little furt-her easr ls
another private residence and garage.
f thlnk you may have testified, just in passrng,
but so the jury understands, were you personally
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involved in taking arr of these measurements?
Yoe qi -- ve f rrL .

How many measurements did you take?
For the Avery salvage property, there are over 41oo
measurements that were documented.

How long were you there? How many days?
It would be November fifth through the twelfth,
about a week. This slide, Mr . Kratz, shows that
two-dimensional CAD drawing of the Avery salvage
yard, and f have hiqhtighted or labeled, rf you
wilf, these areas that we just saw details of, the
location of the RAV_4 in the southeastern corner/
the vehicfe crusher, the busrness office we saw
first in the northeastern corner, and in the
northwest, this is Mr. Avery,s residence.
Were you asked to determine some distances for
us?

Yes, I was askecl to determine some general
distances. Againr ds we saw earlier, these are
point-to-point measurements. They do not account
for the fact that we courd not realry wark from the
business office to the RAV_4. There are some

obstructions in here. But if you took a direct
measurement, you would see it's about almost l1O0
feet. from the RAV-4 to the busrness office.
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O f will just move forward a couple of slides,
because the last slide, the slide on the bottom of
page 16, shows all of those measurements. Why
don't you go head, Mr. Austin, and tetf us what
aIl of those measurements are?
yes' sir' The other measurements r added on here,
like the distance from the RAV_4 to Mr. Avery,s
residence, again straight across the property, is
approximately 1480 feet. The distance back from Mr
Avery's residence to the business offrce ls about
1100 feet.

For the final measurement, what I did is
take the "driving distance,,, if you would, if we
were to go from Mr. Avery,s residence, drive around
and come around from the eastern portron of the
property, down to the RAV-4 rocation, wourd be about
2600 feet of distance.

f have to add, Mr. Kratz, this doesn,t
account for chanqes in ,,grade,,. fn other words, the
Avery property is not just a ffat surface. There
are some elevations in there. That doesn,t account
for travefing down a hill, or traveling up a hill.
So, the actuaf distance might be slightly greater
than 2600 feet.
How far is that in miles?
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A Well, a mile is 5,280 feetr so this woufd be close
to a half mile.
Now, these two_dimensional views, the charts or
the diagrams, if you will, have been used in
| -j - r ^Lrrd_15. tJut' are you able, with this software, are
you able, with your training and experience, to
convert these measuremenLs, and to convert
these two-dimensional images into more
three-dimensiona_I scenes or models?

Yes. As f mentioned before, the total statron
actually records measurements ln 3-D space, that is
not just our flat X and y axis, but al-so a Z axis,
up and down' so we can come up with the elevations,
or the height of specific objects, which was done in
this case using a different software package.
Letrs talk about that software.
The software package utirized is known as F.orensic
3-D. Tt's a conputer-aided drawing program. It,s
powered by a CAD engine called Rhinoceros. It,s
typically used in the marine industry, and the
jewelry-design industry.

What this does is allows a user to actually
.]*^,. i -^ - ^Lr_Ldw rrl J_D space. With the three_dimensronal
drawings, it allows us to better understand, as I
wrote up here, the spaciar and geometricar_
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relationships between objects. fn other wordsr we
are not lust looking stralght down, and rt,s
something where we can examine another vantage point
or perspective.

so the jury understands, eventuarry where we are
gorng/ f know f'm fast_forwarding, and we witl get
there, but will this al_low us to go through an
animatron, to actually do a tour or walk_through
of various locations?
Yes. As we work our way through enough of the
slides f have here, we wilt eventually get to using
the software to create an animation or wark-through,
if you wilf, of the physical scene.

A11 right. Let's talk about assrgning texture
maps ?

With the softwar:e package, the user utilrzes a

process cafled texture mapping to create a dra'ing
like the one yoLi see here. What that means rs, if I
create a 1-hree-crimensional moder from this software,
r can apply a texture to that, to make iL more
reafistic looking, if you wilf.

In this case, for example, what was done is
a photograph was taken of the siding of Mr. Avery,s
resrdence. Using that photograph of the siding, it
was pasted onto a three-dimensional moderr SO that
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actual siding is what you see in this moder that was
rendered.

Now, when we look at things such as grass or
wood, that was taken from a personal library that I
had, if you will. That wdy, I can make something
look similar to grass or look similar to wood. But
there are certain aspects of this property that the
texture mapplng was done by using the actual
photographs that we had of the sidlng of the
residence, the siding of the garage, the floor in
the bathroom, and the floor ln the bedroom.
A11 right. what areas were you asked to do
three-dimensional modeling in?

Although the entire property, ag,ain/ was

forensicarly mapped, the three-dimensional modering
was done in the nort-nwestern area, ds that area is
the area of the two .residences that we have
discussed earlier.
The first scene model is from the bottom of page
19. Why don't you ivalk us through this
briefly?
what we are rooking ar here r_s an overview of the
entire area that was done in three di-mensrons. For
what we are seeing here, north would be to the
bottom of the image. fn other wordsr we are looking
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to the south, and on the right-hand side we see Mr.
Avery's residence. we see the garage next to that,
and we have to talk about these other restdences
too, private residences here, and then the garage
and the vehicfes and the other items that were in
place when the forensic mapplng was completed.
You talked about Mr. Avery,s residence, and I
think you also mentioned this residence. Do you
know what that is?

This residence that we are seeing on the left side
of the screen, whlch would be to the eastr ]S the
residence of, r believe, Barb Janda, and Mr. Dassey.
Here we have that previous sl-ide that we showed,
with a box around that, and next we have essentiarly
zoomed in, if you will, or moved cfoser, to get a

close-up view of that Janda_Dassey residence.
Is this view the front of that residence?

Yes. This would be the front of that resiflsn6s.
Againr w€ are at "north", looklng south. What is
nlce about using the forensrc or three-dimensionar
models here, w€ can actually take that and go around
to view the back side. We are not limited just to
certaln views of this locatron.
Let me ask vou, Trooper Austin, the advantage,
recognizing it's not a photograph, but is the
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advantage of incident scene mapping that it does
allow perspective, or views, that perhaps the
naked eye can't see?

Yes. The first part of the question is very
important. These are not photographs. These are
agafn' scene moders that were created and compired
based on the measurements taken at the scene. But
where they are advantageousr w€ can change the views
and change the perspective.

This one/ for exampre, r don,t know how high
up the camera is in the air, probably somewhere
around 50 to 75 feet. But, obviously, it,s not a

vrew that I could take or obtain from being out
there at t.he scene.

What are we looking at now?

As f stated before, with these models, we can
actually change our location to gain a drfferent
perspectrve. fn this caser we moved behind the
Janda-Dassey residence ;ust to get a good look at
the back side of that house, to see the geometric
refationships of objects there.
We are talking about the Janda property. Were you
also asked to do a scene model for the Avery
property, and what is called the curtilage, 1_he

area around it, as well?
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A Yes. Just as we did with the Janda propertyr we can
do the same thing with the Mr. Avery,s residence,
over on the west side. What you are seerng here is
another view of the larger model_, where we are
zooming in on Mr. Avery,s residence. Just as we did
previousry' we can move around to the back side, Lo
vrew the spacial relationships there. So, again,
the advantage is that we can take any particular
vrew or perspective we want, to look at rt, and see
that, using the three_dimensionaf models.
Now, these are exterior views, that is, on the
outside of the property. Were you asked to, in
effect, do the same process inside of the
buildings ?

Yes, that is correct. Exterior models were created
of Mr. Avery's residence and the garage next to it.
rt's the same plrocess that r did for the exrerrors.
Most of the measurements that we talked about were
taken inside the residence. what r can do with this
software is actuafry go in closer on thal- residence,
fade in or out, or remove the roofr So that we can
see arr of the various rooms inside the residence.
Again, j-t's a view that we could not have through
normal photographs of the buildings.
At the bottom of page 24, the first interror scene
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model/ why don't you tell us what we are looking

This particular modef shows Mr. Avery,s residence,
and, again, what we have done here, the roof was
hidden, which aflows us to gain a perspective of how
the house is laid out, where these various rooms are
rn rel_ationship to each other, and where some of the
main pieces of furniture that were measured are
located.

O Are you able, and

rooms and give us

room?

can you, in fact,
better views of a

take specific

part rcular

A yes. Actually all of the rooms to the one side I
had oriqinalry created images showing the interiors
of the rooms. l-or example, in this caser w€ can
r-ook at the back bedroom, which you can see outrined
here in yel'0w. we can zoom in croser from another
angle to gain a perspective of how that particular

O

room is laid out.

What f 'm showin<; you is the bottom of page
rs that the rayoutr or more details of the
of Mr. Averyrs master bedroom, or what you
the back bedroom?

Yes. However, I wouldn'

it's the same model that

t say "more details" because

we saw before. All we have
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done is changed our perspective, moved a rittre
closer, to see the objects Lhat were placed in the
room. ft's not necessarily any more detailed. ft,s
just that we have moved to a new perspective. We

can now see the spaciar rerationships of the objects
1n that location.

o you said you were asked to do the same rnterior
modeling with the garage? Can you tell us about
that ?

W^^ ^i --aErr l>rr. tne exact same process was utilized with
the garaqe ' However, these measurements here were
also documented using that totaf station, and when
this was mapped, we picked out the main or the
larger items that were in the garage to place them
rnto the model, and what you are seeing here is an
overview of the garage with the roof removed, so we

can see what is in that garage.

On March first and second of 2A06, additronal
information was brought to your attention, and the
prosecutron then, that is, myself, Mr. Gahn, and
Mr. Farlon, dsked you to include or create some

additional images; is that correct?
Yes, that is correct, Mr. Kratz. Additional
measurements were recorded by other faw enforcement
officers in March of 2006, and I was asked to
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include two of those evidentiary items in the scare
model, and those items were denoted by what is
described as being "evidence markers,,.

So, to help show those locations, us_t_ng

their measurements, r placed the evidence markers in
the model, so that we can see where the items were
positioned.

Now, so that the jury understands the later use of
these in the coming weeks, this image we are
looking dt, from the bottom of page 2J, al_though
not a photograph, does provide, again, a

perspectrve that the naked eye cannot see,. is that
- Yv^^+ auv!!guLi

That's correct, Mr. Krat-2, because, if you recall, a

few slides d9o, as you showed what was in the
garage, there was a suzuki samurai in thrs position,
and i-n the middfe there is a snowmobile rn this
particular view. That Suzuki Samurai and the
snowmobile were removed. That was done oy me with
the intention of being better able to view t.he
focations of these items of evtdentiary value.

fn addition, we see one marked as 23A.
Previous to this slide, there was an air compressor
over that particular location. To herp to be able
to see that locatlon better, f hid or ,,turned off,,,
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if you will, that air compressor, so you don,t see
it in this particular vrew.

o Now' you have made a point before to distinguish
between these inodels and photography. your
next slide attempts to describe that distinction a
litt1e bit furcher. Why don,t you go ahead and do
L11d L i-

Yes. Againr dS in the prevtous question from Mr.
Kratz, he asked me if these were photographs. They
are not photographs. They should no1- be taken as
being photographs. What they are, are
three-dimensional models.

All that a photograph is going to show you
-LS the scene as it was observed when the picture was
taken. fn the nodels, what you are seelng is a

scaled geometric perspective, where we can remove
the roof. We can hide the air compressor/ or gain
different vielvs to better see particurar items.
Atl right. The next area f would like you to
discuss is an area behind the garage of Mr.
Averyrs' were you asked to provide some modeling
of that?

Yes. As we did with
particular area. fn
yellow box showing an

the two houses, we can take a

Lhis caser lou see, agaln/ a

area behlnd the garage. We
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can/ essentially, zoom in, or
to see what some of the items

change our perspecl_ive

are behind that
varclgu.

Agaln, this is an image, which is at the bottom of
.Apage 29. Do those include observations not only

that you made, but measurements that you were
rnvofved in taking sometime between the fifth and
the tweffth of November?

Yes ' This particurar sride shows some items behind
Mr. Avery's garage, that were based on measurements
that were recorded by me or other observacl-ons.
Now, you said we were able to kind of shift
things around to get different perspectives, and
the top of page 30 and 31 are examples of thati is
that correct?

Yes ' what we have done is essentiarly stayed in the
same area, but we have shifted our ,,camera,,, if you
wiflr or our positionr so you can garn another
perspectrve, or another view of the items located
behind the garage.

Were you asked, Mr. Austin, to provide the jury
with some perspective between the areas behind Mr.
Avery's garage and some of t.he back yard areas of
the Janda property?

Yes, r actually moved over the location from that
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area about behind the garage to this area behind the
Janda-Dassey residence. Agaln, it was the same
thing we have seen before. We can shift our
perspective, and our view, to show this location
behind that particular residence. This vlew here is
one that is an elevated view, looking to the This
woufd be the northwest, and we see not just the area
behind t.he Janda_Dassey property, but afso Mr.
Avery's residence, further rnto the image.
once again/ were you asked to create the same
separate anqle, Lf you will, or separat.e
perspective about what wourd be the north of Mr.
Avery's property?

Yes. If f move our focal pornt, if you will, to
this particufar focation, that is being shown on
this screen, we can gain yet another perspective
showing the northern areas, if you will, the areas
in front of Mr. Avery's resrdence.

Can you show us This is the top of page 33.
What are we looxing at here?

what you are 100king at is t.he view 100king from the
north to the southwest, and we see Mr. Avery,s
residence here, and the garage that we looked at
previously. Up, from the main portion of the image,
we are seeing a Dodge Caravan, and there was a.lso a

A

139



1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

10

11

72

IJ

l+

15

16

11

18

.to

20

11

22

Z'

.A

25

O

burn barre-l positioned over here.
Er-; ^ - r r - -!rrrdrry/ trooper Austin/ were you asked to provide
some additional measurements in this quadrantr or
this area of the property?
Yes. f was asked to provide some measurements to
gain an understanding of the distances here. What
you are seeing in this view is that
three-dimensional model, but we are lookrng straight
down on it- Again, the originar view is very
similar to the two_dimensional drawings we saw
prevrously.

But this helps us to be1_ter show the
measurements, and the measurements that we have in
here ar-so is the distance from the main entrance of
Mr' Avery's residence to the burn barrer. That is
approxr-matery 106 feet, and the measurements taken
from the burn area behind the garage to some burn
barrels behind the Janda_Dassey residence were a

d.istance of about 236 f eet.
It's your understanding , oT at least your
directions came from the prosecution, to explain
or to indicate those measurements for the Sury on
this diagram; is that correct?
Yes, that's correct.
The l_ast area of inquiry, Mr. Austin, has to do
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with skeletal models. Although they are clearly
not within your area of expertise, and you witl
not be testifying abouL these models, would you
tell the jury at least what you were asked to
do and how this may come into play later in this
I r.i - 1 .

A r was asked to assist the forensic anthropologist,
Dr' Leslie Eisenberg, in the creation of moders of a
human skereton, to help identify the focation of
varlous bones. Now, to accomplish this, f met with
Dr. Eisenberg, and worked with her, dlrecLly under
her supervision, to create the models as to these
bone locations.

The initiat skeletaf model f obtained from
+L^rne rtjj tn euantico, Virginia. I took that model,s
texture, and as I said before, with the property, f
made it ,Look more of a bony Lexture, if you will,
and under Dr. Eisenberg,s supervision, again, I
created vari-ous models showing that human skeleton,
and f saw some of the bones on rt.

(pfaintiff's Exhibits g1 through 116 marked
for identification. 

)

O Trooper Austinr dS I have asked you before, and
with the witnesses that will come after you, that
are going to be using your animation, or, excuse

I47
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fte, your skefetaf anci scene models, have you been
asked to create 4 by 6 prints of the models?

Yes, f was asked to create that for most of the
amaqes that we saw on the power point, to create 4

by 6 prints of these rendrtions; yes.
The first image that I have for you is, f think,
Er*L.-i 1^l r n.Axnrr:fr 9I; rs that correct?

Yes, sir,

And it gfoes through imager or/ excuse me, Exhibit
11a^I t6/

Yes, sir.
Ejxnr-brt gr, if you can just 1-ake a moment,
through Exhibit 116, are those the scene model
imaqes, both being included in your power pornt,
and that you created as part of this totar station
proj ect ?

Yes, sir, with t-he exception of, there are several
aerial photographs that were utirized in my initial
report that are shown here. Those are not scene
model-s ' They are photographs taken from aircraft.
Those are actually identicar to some that were
already received from other raw enforcement? rs
that your understanding?

Yes, sir.

O

A

O

A
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A

I would move admission ofMR KRATZ:
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Exhibits 9I through 116.

MR. STRANG: No objection.
THE COURT: Those exhibits are
BY MR. KRATZ:

Then, Trooper Austinr we are
your animation. That is the
these scene models. Tell the
anrmation was created?

The intention here was to create an overvrew or a
wafk-through of the scene from the moders that we
saw previously. Now, to create motion, what we have
1s a series of these images. In fact, it shows 30
of them per second to show or to make it appear as
if we're moving through that scene. To create the
Anlm:frnn +L^-urvrr/ LlrdL -L oel_l eve we,fe about to see, ovef
5,250 pictures \,rere brought together at 30 per
second to move us Lhrough the location in question.
r saved these and made a DVD, which was turned over
to Mr. Kratz.

(pl_ainti.f f 's Exhibit IIi marked f or
identification. 

)

What we are going to show then, Trooper Austin,
is Exhibit Number II-/, which I believe is the
anrmation that you are referring to. I woufd ask
that during the presentation of this animarron

admitted.

going to move on to
culmination of all of
lury please how this

O
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that you not interrupt,
and I wifl ask you just
after that?

I understand.

that you remain silent,
a few fol1ow-up questions

Judge, the only thing
was the playlng of the

(The animation CD was attempted to be
played, but the equipment did not work properly, and
the CD was not able to be shown. )

MR. KRATZ: It appears that 1t won,t play on
this laptop. With my apologies to Mr. Strang, if he
could begin his cross examination. Then if I could
play it at the end, I would appreciate that.
Otherwise, f have no further questions of this
wttness.

THE COURT: Mr. Strang, are you an agreement
with that procedure?

MR. BUTING: Why are we playing the
animation at afl?

THE COURT: Mr. Kratz, is that something
that the Stat_e intends to use later in the triaf?
So, you need some foundation, to ge1- it accepted?

MR. KRATZ: This is actually, Judge, to
assist the jury ln understanding the rel-atronship of

r44
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these objects. f did intend to play it now.
want to take just a couple of minutes for a
we can certainly have that set up, and f can
now.

If you

break,

Pfav i I

MR. STMNG: I don,t mind
I think we will- see the animation
had the foundation for it. I don
need to play it now. f can begin

THE COURT: Very

CROSS EXAMINATION

starting my cross

later. We have
l! L Know that we

my cross.
wel l

BY r'ln

O

A

O

A

O

A

STRANG:

Good afternoon.

Good afternoon, slr.
f wil-l turn my ',mike,, on. How is that? All
right. So, or November 5 you get to the Avery
Salvage yard; right.?

Yae ci -- -v, ur! .

And one of the first orders of business l-s to map
the area around the Toyota RAV_4?

Yes. The first place we mapped was around the
RAV_4.

A1] right. That involved taking the llttle prism,
and going up, and putting that on or over certarn
objects around the Toyota?

Yes, sir. yes, that's correct.
Did it also involve putting the little prism,

O

A

O
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sometrmes sticking it in a cerLain area on the
Toyota r or over it directly?

A over it directly' Not directly on that particular
item.

o okay' And then somebody er-se stood somewhere erse
with the ,'total station,,, as you call it, and it
shined the little r-aser and bounced it back to the
prism,- is that correct?

A YOE

O And so this was a two_person process?
A Yes, it is a two_man cperatton.
o And you took a number of measurements around the

Toyota ?

1 r'

O And objects around 1t?
n ir

O Then a number of measurements of the ,_foyota

r feol ft

A The Toyota itself, we woufd have had four
measurements.

O Just the four corners?
A No' when we map the location of vehicres, we utifize

the position of the wheels. we can get dal-a showing
us later the exact size of a part.icular vehicle, for
axfe 1 and axle 2.
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No, f will l_ook up that elsewhere, to get the
I will use the dimensions to draw the

rln^ l + r ^ r rvvrl L LeII tne COmpUtef, nflrg thiS
particular vehic1e,,, and it draws it. f have to do
a fittle research to get some information about it.
Then the computer fills in a ,,Toyota,,, rn effect?
Either f draw that r or f use an existing Toyota, and
specify which items to fill in. There is a lot more
manuaf work than there is that the computer does by
tfsolf

A11 riqht. The point is, what you are doing here
ls, you have already said this, but fet,s explore
it a llttle bit. There is no camera involved
:.n any of thls,. correct?

No.

Not an old-fashioned camerar or a digitat camera?
No camera.

There are a couple of prisms
Yoq

And you have a computer that calculates angles and
distances?

The total station does that.

dimensions.

vehicle. J

Okay. Then what you do is
computer some information
vehicle ?

you ]ater give the
about the modet of the

and a laser?

O

A

A
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O Then at your rlesk Lop, you probably have a laptop
computer/ something sort of like this; right?

A yes, f use a computer.

O And you can open various files, and the computer
allows you to add a col_or?

r{ yes.

O And a texture?

o And to pick standard sorts of objects that might
be incfuded?

O Like a tree?
l !,

o your computer even has a little file you can open
up and plck the type of tree you wanL?

A That's correct.
O Whether it has leaves r or does not have leaves?
A f can pick the global seasonr !€s.
O You can turn the sun on?

A That's correct, f can.

O you can turn the sun off?
lf. Yoq

O ff you want to put the sun in the northern skV, on
November 5, or the northern hemi.snhsls, you can do
+1-^r^Ll. ld. L a
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v^^ac5r -L could.

Yotr cnrrl-J '^,.!rvu (-uuJO pUt it

where you felt I
Yoq

in the eastern skV, if that ls
iko nrr1-r_.i^^ r!1;_L-rJlg f t?

You could have the sun rise in the west, if that
was your choice on a given duy, is 1-hat correct?
If it was my intenlion to change science, yes/ f
could move the sun.

Okay. So, what we have got here is a modef;
right ?

Yes, a three-dimensional modelr !€s.
ActuaIly, it's a two_dimensional model; rrght, that
fooks three-dimensional, by the use of
perspective? Everything f saw was projected on
this surface? Am I right?

Well, the screenr fes, is two_dimensional.
Right. The model itself looks three_dimenslonal,
by the use of p:rspective?

Weff, it's not a physical model, like the cups here.
r can't bring it in to you. rt,s a computer model,

l-.-!rJuL r.m drawrng it in 3_D space, and assigning it to
an X and y axis, but f don,t have a physrcal axis to
grve you.

fn that sense, it's not
two-dimensional, but by

three-dimensional? ft,s
using the vanishing point

I49
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and the principles of perspectiver we carl
the illusion of three_dimensional space on
q1-raah ?vvrvvrl:

grve rt
: f I -+!aqL

fL's difficult for me to follow you. We do our work
in 3-D, but you could say the same is true of
photography, that photography is two_dimensionaf.
all-^uu!9.

ff that is what you are saying, f will agree with
you.

When you say you do your work in three_dimensions,
you are not actually building a model-, in any
event? f mean that you didn,t use something like
this box for Barb Janda,s trailer, f assume?

No, it's not a physical stick_built modei, tf you
willr or plastic model. rt's a virtual computer
environment.
n l-- --wJ<,dy. bot rt. Now, we are in the virtual
environment. Let,s go back to what you and I both
agree is two-dimensional space. Okay? We wilt go
to what you cal_L your orthogonal views. Got me?
Sure. Orthogonal.

"Lookinq st.raigh t down,, ,
Yoq

in other words?

O

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O Orthogonal is
straight down

a fancy, $64 word,

at something?

for looking

150



I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1)

iJ

1A

15

16

I1

18

1Q

20

21

22

z)

a^

25

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

0

A

O

Yes.

Okay. Now, you told us early on, and actually
showed us a pretty slide of the areas that you did
some orthcgonal mapping, forensic mapping of.
Firstr we had the Avery Salvage property,. riohf r

okay' And then we had Let,s do it this way.
f'm just going to take the prece of paper from
your report. I'm going to put it on this,,gizmo,,.
Then f wifl "zoom it,,. (Ustng viewing machine,
showing document on screen. ) Okay. Now, that is
hard to see/ l:ut down at the bottom, do you see
that area, "hunting camp,,?

That was an area you said you also mapped?
Yes.

So, there you could give us an overhead view?
Yes, sir.
Okay. Now, there were some other areas that you
also were asked to map back on November fifth
through November L2, 2005? Some other areas off
the Avery property; true?

There were specific evidentiary spots that were
mappedr using a compretely dlfferent instrument, and
not by me, of those particufar things that may have

A
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been of evidentiary value in surrounding quarries.
Those were not done by me, but f have knowledge of
f]-,-+ullo L .

r1,oL rb lnese maps were Mapping coordinates
were provided to you; correct?

T rln 1. ^--^ ^nf L-r(, rldve Gps coordinates for other itemsr !€s7 r
do.

A11 right. Let's back up. probably hatf of
our jury knows what ,,GpS,, is. The other half
doesn't. That is ,,Global positioning Sate11ite,,?

That's correct ' The other i-nstrument uses a total
station aIso, but that also utilizes a GpS, global
positioning satel_fite system. Those were specrfic,
f bel-ieve, 11 or 72 points our rn the guarrres
identified by the search teams.
And someone else did that mapping, f understand,
uslng a different technology?

Yes, sir. That is correct.
Using actually satellites that have
geo-syncronized orbits; is that correct?

To use a fancy t-erm, that aflows anybody who gets
access to the system to know where you are/ by
degrees of latitude and longrtude, down ro a
matter of seconds anywhere on the globe?

A

o

A

O

A

O

A

O
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Yes, that's correct, sir.
AI1 --i ^r^rn_L_L rtgnr. And the purpose of taking these GpS
measurements was to provide them to you for your
forensic mapplng project?

Yes. Should they become necessary later for
mapprngr w€ had it available to uS, if such was
n oar]or.l--vvvuu.

f will show you figure 50 from your report. Okay.
f will put that up here. But first I will just
ask you: That is your figure 50?

Yes.

That is a page of your report, labeled figure 50?
You have seen it before?

fndeed, you made it; is that correct?
Yes, sir, I did.
All right. Now, that is up on the little gizmo
called an "Elmo". Tell us what you see. TelI us
what you have in your figure 50?

This is a map, r believe from Microsoft Streets, or
maybe from Delorme Atlas. f would have to see what
program r used' rt shows the roads in the vrcinity
of the Avery properl-y. what r have done here, r
indicated with a red box the approximal-e l0cation of
the Avery salvage yard, and the approximate location

O

A

O

A
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of Steven Avery,s residence. There is afso a
reference to GPS coordinates, which r believe is for
the surrounding quarry.

v uKay. And you put in a little red flag?
A yes. What I did, in this mapping program, f gave

rt the GPS coordinates, and it gave me a little red
frag' that is seen on the screen in that particular
rocation' Thenr using Microsoft word, r generated
my report. f labefed that flag as beinq those
partrcular GpS coordinates.

O Okay. you gave the jury a little lesson before
about degrees, minutes, and seconds. ff f read
the coordinates that you have given us herer or
not gr-ven by you, but which were included herer w€
have longitudinal 44 degrees north; right?

O fn the northern hemisphere; right?

O And 14 minutes right?
7 rr.n. YAq

O And 51 seconds?

A Yes, sir.
O And a fatitude of 81 degrees west?
A Yes, sir.
O West of the Greenwich Mean line?
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That is my

41 minutes

Yes, sir.

undersLanding, sir.
and 51 seconds?

r\l-^,-vr\dy. Ano you got only one of these areas, but
did r undersLand you, that you actually were
provided ll or 12 specific GpS sites, GpS
coordinates outside of the Avery Salvage yard
property?

This one that you are showing is not one of the ones
that was provided to me by the GpS mapprng team.
This is one that was provided to me when f was
working, with Dr. Eisenberg. So I don,t want any
confusion, or to imply or suggest to you this is
from the team that used the GpS total starron.
n l---.vndy. lnanK you. I didn,t understand that. I
don't want any confusion either. So thrs fs one
You got from or with Dr. Eisenberg?

But there were 11 or 12 other GpS coordinates?
From that other team, yes. When the search teams
located things they thought could be ,,something,,,
those were indicated to me.

Something of inLerest?

v^ay. Do you have any way of knowrngr ds you sit
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here today, what the distance t_s

site r or the site represented by
here, to either the salvagre yard
res idence ?

from the red flag
the red flag
or Mr. Avery's

I do not. But if you would 1ike me to, I can
certainly figure it out for you.
I wil-l bet you can. (Laughing) If anything, I bet
you can. fs that a lot of trouble?

No. If you want to bring me back later, I can
certainly give you that number.
f don't know if I witl or not. But do you have a
sense at all, as of now, just ball_parkrng?

No, I don't. I wouldn,t feel comfortabie.
Okay. Fine. North is ,,up,, in this f igure?

Yoq ci -- "v f Jr! .

Okay. So, the flag looks like it is southwest,
essentially, of the Avery Salvage property?

Now, l-et's go back to what we are calling the
three-dimensionaf or perspective j-mages that give
us the illusion of depth and height and wrdth.
okay' The virtual environment of three dimensions
on those, Vou couldn,t posslbly map with your
total station and its prism stick, every little
l_tem that a photograph might prck up; correct?

A

A

O
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No, sir.
ft's just a matter
possibly, but there it
and manpower resources;

Yes, f agree.

f guess you could,

becomes an issue of time
right ?

And how did the decision get made on what things
to map and what not to map?

r can give you a particular location, in reference
to the garaqe, for example, r really didn,t have
guidance. With the garage, f picked, or at least I
wrote l_n my report/ a page of the largrer rtems that
were there.

fn terms of the interior of the house, f was
told "main piec,:s of furniture,,, bed, dresser, desk,
that type of thing.

And once you have mapped them, thlngs can be
taken out, so to speak, just,,pheeew,, (sound
effect noise) out of the computer mode-l?
Yes. They can be hiddenr or as f said, ,,turned
^ c c 1ruLr / so we no longer see it in that modef.
You qave one example of the air compressor rn the
garage. Do you remember that?
Yes. The thing is, Mr. Strang, there are layers
over ob;ects, separate layers. We can/ essentially,
turn off one layerr So we don,t see it in our model.
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That was done in the garage with the air compressor,
the Suzuki Samurai, and the snowmobile.
okay. "Now it's here. Now it,s not.,, That is a
matter of a few strokes or clicks of a mouse

A

O for you? I
directions as

present should

are not?

think f have

to what actua

be included

. Who qives you

tems that were

the model and what

rt-

ti
in

Guidance was given from the lead team of
investigators for the prosecurton.
They wanted the compressor outr so you took it
out ?

Yae

They wanted the Samurai in, so you left the
Samurai in?

A

O

A

O

A

okay. Now, I will show you

think that we have seen this
if you recognize rt?

a photograph. I
before. I wi]l

don't

ask

f trs very possible that f may have taken thj_s
photograph. This appears to be the southeastern
area of the salvage yard, the focation where the
RAV-4 was located. It appears that is erther in the
process of covering or uncovering it, with the large
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blue tarp.
Very good.

recoqnl ze

Yes.

There is a

phot o ?

Yoe

Whether you took
Lhe photograph?

rt or notr lou

good old-fashioned phorograph, rhis

MR. STMNG :

(Exhibir 118

BY MR. STRANG

ft's now Exhibit 118.

jury see it. ok:rz

Toyota RAV-4?

r wrr_L mafk

me r lrod €^ -tvI

:

I woul-d I
Th:J_ i c J-h^u11E

this as an exhibit
identi fication 

)

ike to let the

tarp over the

Yes, that 1s my recollection
vehicle was covered.

So, what we are seeing under
car right where it was wherr

November 5?

that night, that the

the bfue tarp ts the
you arrived on

A

O

A

And are we looking, generally, ,,toward the car
crusher", or "from the car crusher,,?
rn this position, sir, we are looking to the west
The car crusher would be off to our right and
perhaps slightly behind us to the northeast.
Okay. So the car crusher is back off thrs way?

O
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rf we are standing here, snapping the picture,
back off behind us?

No. ft would be more to our right. If we are
looklng straight at that photograph, as we,re
looking straight to the west, it,s not far to the
rrght, just slightly behind. That is the direction
the crusher woufd be.

Atl right. What we would see is, there ts a whole
lot of trees, it looks like, and underbrush, and
that kind of thing, that extends along this line
of cars?

Yes. There are some smaller, if you wilf , ,,trees,,,
kind of along the other side of the pond. The nond
would be off to our right also.
Okay. We are up on a ridqe, if you will, above
the pond?

Yes. The pond is pretty __ set down pretty low.
So we're hlgher in e-Levation than the pond.
There is actually sort of a berm here, behind to
the left of the Toyota and that fine of cars; is
that correct?

Yes. you can actually see that in the photograph
there' r'm just pointing to the berm. over on the
opposite side of thls begins some of the quarry type
property.
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To the south of the Avery property?
Yes ' south woufd be to our left in this particular
lmage.

Al I *-,'-L!l1.r-r r]gnt. So, when, for exampler lou mapped the
area around the Toyota and the car crusher in the
southeastern corner of the property, and created
models of it, you simply omitted most or arl
of the trees that we see in the photoqraphs of the
-v^^a

lt dctua-Lry/ perhaps I don't want to be a
stickler on verbiage. f didn,t create models. We

have the two-dimensional orthogonal diagrams, but
"models" usualry refers to the three-dimensionar-
model, for which we use the prism of the total-
station to essentially trace the exterior of the
tree line. So each individual tree was nor
col-lected' But we do see on the two-dimensronal
vr-ew just what that width wourd be, as far as we can
go to the trees.
okay. r think you essentiarry outJ-ined the area
where 1_here would be trees?
Correct. Just to better explain that, if I may. If
the wal1s on the sides of the courtroom were the
trees, r would probably take a point in the back and
a point in the front just to show that is the tree

A
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r_L1re/ as opposed to every individuaf tree.
And where you did that, let,s see. we are
at one of your orthogonal views of the rear
we have been discussing?

'I anlzi ^^rvvr\!119

All right. What you have shown us is some
representation of the trees to the south?
Yes. That is the best way to describe the squiggly
line that you just referred to. That would have
been taken al0nq that south tree line that you are
referring to now. rf you look just north of that,
there is another squiggly line that is tougher to

This image right here that f,m referring to?
Rlght ' That would be the edge of the other trees
1-horo

ft's very faint, but you are saying you provided
some line indicating there were trees along there?

Yes ' rt mlght be better if r had the coror version
n€ +1,-..i ^v! Lrrrb. -Lne ground, if you will, I belteve is t.wo
separate col0rs here, which helps us to observe that
difference. But that is how the mapping was done
also on the eastern side here, a10ng the tree rine.
That is another tall berm there.
But if one were standing on the crusher in the
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spot where the arrow comes downr lou would get theimpression, from thls orthogonal diagram, you maybe able to see straight to at -reast the car that
seems to intersect the rine of sight in front ofthe Toyota ' This would 100k rike a line of sight
on your drawing,. correct?

That was not my intention at all, Mr. Strang. f
Jusr wanted to show the distance from the RAV- 4 tothe crusher.

Absolutely. f understand that was not your
I nJ_ anf -i ^^rrl LEr.L urc,rr . f understand. In f act, hy pornt
is: This would not represent the line of sight;
-Arr^^l avv! ! g\, L j

No' r don't r would have to go back and -look at
the other photographs to see how thick the tree rine
rs. f don't want to infer that f could see the
RAV-4 from the crusher, which is 380 feet. There
are smalfer trees that you would have to _Look
through. f just. don,t know.

So, there is no way to know, because, really,
other than showing a squiggly finer lou left out
the trees and underbrush and anything else rn the
way?

That's correct, I did.
Okay. Was this the only car, if you wi]l_r on the
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north side of that liner or near the north tree
| 'l nA /

Based on looking at the diagram, it appears that it
was. f would }ike to go back and review the
photographs, but T don't recalr leaving out any
vehicles on here that were, specifically, mapped.
Just to point out these areas over here, these are
all of the vehicles over here. Obviously, we didn,t
map any of those. We just traced around i:hat row of

But down in this area, f bel_ieve f mapped
out the location of all of the vehlcfes here, except
where you see where we have this pattern again.
Blank spots, so to speak?

Yeah. They appear t-o be blank here.
l ^^ i __r-'gdrI]' r'm not a witness. I don't have a perfect
memory. I am not just saying I think you left
any cars out. f don,t think you did either. But
I ;ust wondered if you had a recollection , Lf that
was/ rn fact the onry car on the north srde of
that littIe fane?

T ^-* r !_L udn t .Just looking at the drawinq, I woufd say
it was the only car right t_here.

Okay.

r woufd feel more comfortabre referring to some of
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the photographs, but I believe that is rt.
Mr' Buting just indicated Lhere appears to be a
second car' kind of hidden by the rabel 0f the
RAV_4 ?

Yes, there is.
n t- -,.uKdy. AjI right. If we were going to get a
real fine of sightr w€ would real}y want to use
photographs, not something that you and your
computer generated?

If we wanted to look at this and say: Could you see
ftr-^Llrc rLF\v_rl Irom the crusher? l{o, this, rrght now, in
this form' is probabry not the best medium to use.
ff you wanted to see: What_ is the distance? That
as why f had it here.
As the crow flies?
Right.

r w111 not pester Mr' Krat z to go back to the power
point presentation, but I will just use my black
and white copy of the sheet that you folks
provided me.

What page are you oo, sir?
21, at the bottom.

THE COURT: Mr. Strang, just for break
purposes, do you know how much time you have left?

MR. STRANG: Five minutes, somethrng like

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O
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THE COURT: Mr. Kratz, what about the State?
MR. KRATZ: My presentation is about a

minute and a half, Judge.

THE COURT: Afl right. Members of the jury,
after we are done with thrs portion of the
proceedinqs today, we are going to let you go early.
That why r kept it going. But if you want a break
now, you can have a break now.

mTr-'l'Hbj JURY: No.

TIIE COURT: f see heads noddlng ,,No,,, so we
wil-l plunqe ahead. A1l right . Mr. Strang?

BY MR. STRANG:

Alt riqht' ou. jury has already seen a sride of
this, that g,arage, sort of ; right ?

Yes. This is my model of t_he garage.
And what you have done for us is help us make
believe that the glarage had no roof?
f don't f ike the words ,,make belj_eve,,, but, yes.
The roof was removed so we could see inside the
garage.

Then we can

or 30 feet
:-s ?

IgD.

also see it as if
up, somethinq like

we were hovering 20
lL^L
L.rrc1 L / wnateVer thi S

O

A
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v lal1er than any of us?

O Okay. And this is a pretty clean looking
garage, the model; is that correct?

nil

O you have got a view of a John Deere tractor?
A yes, it is.
O And it's a vivid, efectric green in color,. 1s that

(].)rro-1- ?_."!!vvU.

l \,

O Rrrf if -x uqu rL people fcok at the garagfe, the John Deere
tractor is there? ff we look at an actuaf picture
of the garager w€ see the John Deere tractor?

O With some other thinqs; ri rrht r
A YOA

O A whofe fot of clutter?
A yes' A snowmobi-re is in there. There is a tabre

with the items in the back. J know we are seeing a
fot more clutter: in the act-ual scene or the
photograph than we have seen in the model, but we
have Lwo different purposes for this too.

O Okay. fs this thing down here the seat, and then
the wind screen of one of the snowmobiles?

A yes.
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Does the photograph

-^!.-- I lduLucrily SaW ft Che

72?

show the garaqe as

week of November 5

you

Le L\ovember

A

O

A

fn fla^L11U

of the

Yes, that shows the east wall of the garaqe. We see
a snowmobile, some tabfes. There is a freezer back
over here too. That is how f recall the garage.
There is a snowmobile under there somewhere?
Yeah. Do you see this glreen stripe here? That is
the wind screen that you saw on the other one.
Okay. What is the gray thing on the right side of
the photo?

Are you referring to this here, sir?
Yes ?

That is the Suzuki Samurai.

AII right. That is the garage as it actually
l-ooked to you November 5 through November '2?

Yes, that is how f recall the garage.
Let's look at the south waf_l of the garager or
part of the south walr. That is how it fooked to
you, November 5 through November 12?

Yes, it does. Again, I see a tool chest, the air

Yes, it does.

And how about

other side of
garage ?

+-1"-..i ^. ^L1r_L 5 i UOeS

J-ha
Yqrdgc/

that take us

Lhe east side

O

A

A
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compressor we talked about before.
weeder, with a waste basket. That
my recolfection of the qarage.
So, if you use the laser pointer,

There is a

definirely fits,

Lhe air
compressor is gone?

rt's this green item down here near the center of
the photograph.

That thing that you took out of the phoro ls the
little evidence tenl_ that sard ,,23_A,,?

Yes, I did.

Now, the photograph, actually, you can see pretty
well under the compressor in the photograph, can,t
you ?

That is one of the fevr places rn the garage that
appears not to be cluttered?

with the excepti-on we cannot see behind the wheer.
r can see some flooring under it from this view.

MR. STRANG: All right. I,m going to mark
the photographs that you have just shown us and then
f'm done.

(Exhibits 119 through 121 marked for
ldentification. 

)

BY MR. STRANG:

Real quick, just so the record is clear,

A

O

A

O

A

O

A

O C) k.a rz
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f'm doing them in the same order I just showed
them to you. Exhibit 119 has the John Deere
tractor in it; is that correct?

Yes, it does.

Exhibit L20 is the side of the garage with t.he
snowmobife that you pointed out and part of the
gray Samurai?

zrno Lxhrbrt 12

of tha ^rrr^^yqrqVs,

Yoq ci -UrI !

1 is the south

with the air
part, the south wall

compre s sor ?

MR. STRANG: Okay.

have been offered with Mr.
+-L-+ | ^ ^ r fLrrdL 5 dII I NAVC.

(At which time Mr.

show the video presentation
rt was not. successful. )

THE COURT: Any objection to
MR. KRATZ: No.

the exhibits?

Kratz made an attempt to
to the jury again, but

I move the

Austin, your

exhibits that
Honor, and

THE COURT: very well. The exhibits are
admitted. Mr. Kratz?

MR. KRATZ: Judge, we

have this work today. We wilf
another witness. f will have

however, and 1f it is received

seem destined to not

put it in through

this animation marked,

without objection,
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then r have no further guestions of this wrtness.
Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Strang?
MR. STRANG: That,s flne. We can mark it

and I think 1t can be received for purposes of
today.

mrr-'I'nEj COURT: Very well_. The Court wilf order
rt received, but not admitted. fs that it, counsel?

MR. STRANG: yes, I think, for now.
THE COURT: All_ right. Members of the jury,

that is alf the jury work we have for you today. So
f'm excusing you for today.

Before we do that, f wit] remind you that
the Court has previously ordered thaL you do not
watch the 10ca] news on tetevision r or risten to the
local news on the radio r or read the newspaper/
unl-ess you have someone first remove any articles
related to the case from the newspaper. In addition
to videos, internet web sites, or web logs, whi_ch
includes any information about the case.

ff you are invofuntarily exposed to
information about the case from any source/
take steps to immediately avoid any further
exposure.

with thatr lou are excused for tocrarr

any

please
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(At whlch time the jury reft the courtroom
for the day' The forrowing proceedings continued in
the courtroom, outside of the presence of the lury,
with the attorneys and the defendant being present. 

)

THE COURT: you may be seated. Counsel, is
there anything to put on the record before we
conclude today?

MR. STRANG: What exhibit number did you
give the anlmation?

MR. KRATZ: The animation was Exhibit IIi.
Judger we did offer that, but the power pornt
rtself, although the hard copy was previously
marked, f alerted the Court that f was gorng to ask
that the actuaf disk be recerved. F.or purposes of
the record, that is Exhibit I22, and I will offer
that at this time.

THE COURT: Are there any exhibits,
either party may move admissron for, that we

address at this time?

MR. KRATZ: I have moved all of them, Judge.
r think they have been authenticated and identified.

MR. STRANG: I think we have addressed al]
^€ rL^*ur Lrern' -L Know r moved Exhibits 118 through r27,
and those were admitted. My notes suggest that Mr.
Kratz has moved his exhlbits, and the Court has

112
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rul-ed on everything that
today.

he discussed or has shown

MR. F-ALLON:

Exhibit 90 ivas?

It was offered and

was admitted yet,

has seen it. Isn'

Can f ask the Clerk what

THE REPORTER: Is this on the record? I
don't know who is speaking right now.

MR. KRATZ: That,s Mr. Faflon.
THE REPORTER: Okay. Thank you.
rHU CLERK: Mr. Austin,s report is Exhibit

90, and the power point is Exhibit I22.
MR. FALLON: Okay.

THE COURT: Mr. KraLz, has the State moved
admission of the animation disk?

MR. KRATZ: yes.

THE COURT: I think that was viewed in the
motron hearing ,cefore we started. Does the defense
aqree that can be admitted? That was the thing they
didn't get to work today. But I believe rt
previously has been shown in court as part of a

motion hearinq.

MR. STRANG : Right. That is Exhlbit IIj .

received. I don't think that it
because nobody identified it or
t that Exhibit Il7?

f CJ.MR. KRATZ:

I13
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mrrhtHEi COURT: I take it, authentication is not
going to be a problem. so, it wi'l be admitted when
it is viewed in front of the lury.

MR. STRANG: Right.

THE COURT: All right. Very well. Anything
else today? rf not, r wourd like to see counser for
just a couple minutes in chambers before you -Leave.

(proceedings concluded for the day.)
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STATE OF WISCONSIN

MANITOWOC COUNTY

I, Steven J. platkowski, hereby certify that
r reported in Stenograph the proceedlngs held before the

Court on the 14th day of February , 2OOJ,

and that the foregoirrg transcript is a true and correct
copy of the said sterLograph notes, and of the whole
J_horanf

Dated at Chilton, Wisconsin, this seventh
day of September, 2OOj.

SS

Lt-)


